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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this “Form 10-Q”) contains forward-looking statements, within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation 
Reform Act of 1995 as contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), about Excelerate Energy, Inc. (“Excelerate” and together with its subsidiaries, “we,” “us,” “our” 
or the “Company”) and our industry that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact including, 
without limitation, statements regarding our future results of operations or financial condition, business strategy and plans, expansion plans and strategy, 
economic conditions, both generally and in particular in the regions in which we operate or plan to operate, objectives of management for future 
operations, and our share repurchase program are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by 
terminology such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “consider,” “contemplate,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,” 
“project,” “should,” “target,” “will” or “would” or the negative of these words or other similar terms or expressions.
 
You should not rely on forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. We have based the forward-looking statements primarily on our current 
expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition and operating results. The 
outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors described under “Risk Factors” in 
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the “2023 Annual Report”), this Form 10-Q and our other filings with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), including, but not limited to, the following:

•unplanned issues, including time delays, unforeseen expenses, cost inflation, materials or labor shortages, which could result in delayed receipt 
of payment or project cancellation;
•the competitive market for liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) regasification services;
•changes in the supply of and demand for and price of LNG and natural gas and LNG regasification capacity;
•our need for substantial expenditures to maintain and replace, over the long-term, the operating capacity of our assets;
•our ability to obtain and maintain approvals and permits from governmental and regulatory agencies with respect to the design, construction and 
operation of our facilities and provision of our services;
•our ability to access financing on favorable terms;
•our debt level and finance lease liabilities, which may limit our flexibility in obtaining additional financing, or refinancing credit facilities upon 
maturity;
•our financing agreements, which include financial restrictions and covenants and are secured by certain of our vessels; 
•our ability to enter into or extend contracts with customers and our customers’ failure to perform their contractual obligations;
•our ability to purchase or receive physical delivery of LNG in sufficient quantities to satisfy our delivery and sales obligations under gas sales 
agreements and/or LNG sales agreements or at attractive prices;
•our ability to maintain relationships with our existing suppliers, source new suppliers for LNG and critical components of our projects and complete 
building out our supply chain;
•risks associated with conducting business in foreign countries, including political, legal, and economic risk;
•the technical complexity of our floating storage and regasification units (“FSRUs”) and LNG import terminals and related operational problems;
•the risks inherent in operating our FSRUs and other LNG infrastructure assets;
•customer termination rights in our contracts; 
•adverse effects on our operations due to disruption of third-party facilities;
•infrastructure constraints and community and political group resistance to existing and new LNG and natural gas infrastructure over concerns 
about the environment, safety and terrorism;
•shortages of qualified officers and crew impairing our ability to operate or increasing the cost of crewing our vessels;
•acts of terrorism, war or political or civil unrest; 
•compliance with various international treaties and conventions and national and local environmental, health, safety and maritime conduct laws 
that affect our operations;
•Kaiser (as defined herein) having the ability to direct the voting of a majority of the voting power of our common stock, and his interests possibly 
conflicting with those of our other stockholders;
•the possibility that EELP (as defined herein) will be required to make distributions to us and the other partners of EELP; 
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•our dependence upon distributions from our subsidiaries to pay dividends, if any, taxes and other expenses and make payments under the Tax 
Receivable Agreement (“TRA”);
•the requirement that we pay over to Excelerate Energy Holdings, LLC and the George Kaiser Family Foundation (or their affiliates), most of the 
tax benefits we receive; and
•other risks, uncertainties and factors set forth in the 2023 Annual Report, this Form 10-Q and our other filings with the SEC, if applicable, 
including those set forth under “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and 
“Business.” 

Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks and uncertainties emerge from time to time, and it is not 
possible for us to predict all risks and uncertainties that could have an impact on the forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-Q. For 
example, the current global economic uncertainty and geopolitical climate, including international wars and conflicts, and world or regional health events, 
including pandemics and epidemics and governmental and third-party responses thereto, may give rise to risks that are currently unknown or amplify the 
risks associated with many of the foregoing events or factors. The results, events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements may not 
be achieved or occur, and actual results, events or circumstances could differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements.

In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based on 
information available to us as of the date of this Form 10-Q. While we believe that the statements provided herein are supported by information obtained 
in a reasonable manner, that information may be limited or incomplete. Our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an 
exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain, and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely on 
these statements.

The forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-Q relate only to events as of the date on which the statements are made. We undertake no 
obligation to update any forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-Q to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Form 10-Q or to 
reflect new information or the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions or 
expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements, and you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. Our forward-
looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures or investments.
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

 
Excelerate Energy, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023
     March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
     (Unaudited)     
ASSETS     (In thousands)  

Current assets      
Cash and cash equivalents $ 578,882   $ 555,853  
Current portion of restricted cash  3,613   2,655 
Accounts receivable, net  66,416    97,285  
Current portion of net investments in sales-type leases  18,034    16,463  
Other current assets  26,651    27,356  

Total current assets  693,596    699,612  
Restricted cash  14,157    13,950  
Property and equipment, net  1,650,204    1,649,779  
Net investments in sales-type leases  378,184    383,547  
Investment in equity method investee  21,038    21,269  
Deferred tax assets, net  41,812    42,948  
Other assets  58,690    49,274  

Total assets $ 2,857,681   $ 2,860,379  
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY      
Current liabilities      
Accounts payable $ 7,304  $ 13,761  
Accrued liabilities and other liabilities  93,611    89,796  
Current portion of deferred revenue  20,719    27,169  
Current portion of long-term debt  44,383    42,614  
Current portion of long-term debt – related party  8,487   8,336 
Current portion of finance lease liabilities  22,411    22,080  

Total current liabilities
 

196,915
   

203,756
 

Long-term debt, net  322,527    333,367  
Long-term debt, net – related party  169,361    171,693  
Finance lease liabilities  184,474    189,807  
TRA liability  67,060    67,061  
Asset retirement obligations  42,289    41,834  
Other long-term liabilities  46,857    43,507  

Total liabilities $ 1,029,483   $ 1,051,025  
Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)      
Class A Common Stock ($0.001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized, 26,366,192 shares 
issued as of March 31, 2024 and 26,284,027 shares issued as of December 31, 2023)  26    26  
Class B Common Stock ($0.001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized and 82,021,389 shares 
issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023)  82    82  
Additional paid-in capital  465,667    465,551  
Retained earnings  45,405    39,754  
Accumulated other comprehensive income  1,052   505  
Treasury stock (648,356 shares as of March 31, 2024 and 20,624 shares as of December 31, 
2023)  (10,677 )   (472 )
Non-controlling interest  1,326,643    1,303,908  

Total equity  1,828,198    1,809,354  
Total liabilities and equity $ 2,857,681   $ 2,860,379  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Excelerate Energy, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) 
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
 

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  

 (In thousands, except share and per share amounts)  
Revenues      

FSRU and terminal services $ 156,994   $ 118,577  
Gas sales  43,119    92,479  

Total revenues  200,113    211,056  
Operating expenses      

Cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses (exclusive of items below)  70,613    58,792  
Direct cost of gas sales  39,879    55,185  
Depreciation and amortization  22,910    25,193  
Selling, general and administrative expenses  21,552    22,317  
Total operating expenses  154,954    161,487  

Operating income  45,159    49,569  
Other income (expense)      

Interest expense  (12,146 )   (11,955 )
Interest expense – related party  (3,460)   (3,592)
Earnings from equity method investment  531    416  
Other income, net  4,957   3,904 

Income before income taxes  35,041    38,342  
Provision for income taxes  (6,901)   (7,603)

Net income  28,140    30,739  
Less net income attributable to non-controlling interest  21,816    23,895  

Net income attributable to shareholders $ 6,324  $ 6,844 
      
Net income per common share – basic $ 0.24   $ 0.26  
Net income per common share – diluted $ 0.24   $ 0.26  
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic  26,161,691    26,254,167  
Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted  26,182,050    26,269,862  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Excelerate Energy, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
 

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
 (In thousands)  

Net income $ 28,140   $ 30,739  
Other comprehensive income (loss)      

Cumulative translation adjustment  35    (420 )
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges  2,988   (108 )
Share of other comprehensive loss of equity method investee  (762 )   (737 )
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest  (1,714)   958  

Comprehensive income  28,687    30,432  
Less comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interest  21,816    23,895  

Comprehensive income attributable to shareholders $ 6,871  $ 6,537 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Excelerate Energy, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Unaudited) 
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
 

 Issued       
Accumul

ated             

 Class A   Class B     
Additiona

l  other      Non-    

 Common Stock   Common Stock   Retained  paid-in  
compreh
ensive   Treasury stock   

controllin
g  Total  

(In thousands, except 
shares) Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   earnings  capital  

income 
(loss)   Shares   Amount   interest  equity  

Balance at January 1, 2024
 

26,284,0
27   $ 26    

82,021,3
89   $ 82   $ 39,754  $ 465,551  $ 505    20,624   $ (472 )  $

1,303,90
8  $

1,809,35
4  

Net income  —    —    —    —    6,324   —   —    —    —    21,816   28,140  
Other comprehensive 
income  —    —    —    —    —   —   547    —    —    1,714   2,261  
Long-term incentive 
compensation  —    —    —    —    —   330   —    —    —    1,047   1,377  
Class A dividends – 
$0.025 per share  —    —    —    —    (673 )  —   —    —    —    —   (673 )
EELP distributions to 
Class B interests  —    —    —    —    —   —   —    —    —    (2,051 )  (2,051 )
Minority owner 
contribution – Albania 
Power Project  —    —    —    —    —   —   —    —    —    209   209  
Restricted stock units 
vested  95,466    —    —    —    —   —   —    39,702    (858 )   —   (858 )
Shares withheld for taxes  (13,301 )   —    —    —    —   (214 )  —    —    —    —   (214 )
Repurchase of Class A 
Common Stock  —    —    —    —    —   —   —    588,030    (9,347 )   —   (9,347 )

Balance at March 31, 2024
 

26,366,1
92   $ 26    

82,021,3
89   $ 82   $ 45,405  $ 465,667  $ 1,052    648,356   $ (10,677 )  $

1,326,64
3  $

1,828,19
8  

                              
Balance at January 1, 2023

 
26,254,1

67   $ 26    
82,021,3

89   $ 82   $ 12,009  $ 464,721  $ 515    —   $ —   $
1,219,34

4  $
1,696,69

7  
Net income  —    —    —    —    6,844   —   —    —    —    23,895   30,739  
Other comprehensive 
loss  —    —    —    —    —   —   (307 )   —    —    (958 )  (1,265 )
Long-term incentive 
compensation  —    —    —    —    —   86   —    —    —    271   357  
Class A dividends – 
$0.025 per share  —    —    —    —    (663 )  —   —    —    —    —   (663 )
EELP distributions to 
Class B interests  —    —    —    —    —   —   —    —    —    (2,051 )  (2,051 )
Minority owner 
contribution – Albania 
Power Project  —    —    —    —    —   —   —    —    —    337   337  

Balance at March 31, 2023
 

26,254,1
67   $ 26    

82,021,3
89   $ 82   $ 18,190  $ 464,807  $ 208    —   $ —   $

1,240,83
8  $

1,724,15
1  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Excelerate Energy, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
 
 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
Cash flows from operating activities (In thousands)  
Net income $ 28,140   $ 30,739  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities      

Depreciation and amortization  22,910    25,193  
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets  429    7,428  
ARO accretion expense  455    436  
Amortization of debt issuance costs  877    3,345  
Deferred income taxes  1,119    682  
Share of net earnings in equity method investee  (531 )   (416 )
Long-term incentive compensation expense  1,377    357  
(Gain)/loss on non-cash items  —    1,326  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:      
Accounts receivable  30,869    24,528  
Other current assets and other assets  (7,344 )   36,756  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (13,421 )   (99,381 )
Current portion of deferred revenue  (6,450 )   17,357  
Net investments in sales-type leases  3,792    3,366  
Other long-term liabilities  2,439    (4,919 )

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 64,661   $ 46,797  
      
Cash flows from investing activities      

Purchases of property and equipment  (12,769 )   (14,929 )
Net cash used in investing activities $ (12,769 )  $ (14,929 )

      
Cash flows from financing activities      

Repurchase of Class A Common Stock  (8,418 )   —  
Repayments of long-term debt  (9,638 )   (4,829 )
Repayments of long-term debt – related party  (2,181 )   (1,990 )
Payment of debt issuance costs  —    (4,582 )
Principal payments under finance lease liabilities  (5,002 )   (5,297 )
Dividends paid  (652 )   —  
Distributions  (2,051 )   —  
Minority owner contribution – Albania Power Project  209    337  

Net cash used in financing activities $ (27,733 )  $ (16,361 )
      

Effect of exchange rate on cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash  35    (420 )
      
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash  24,194    15,087  
      
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash      

Beginning of period $ 572,458   $ 537,971  
End of period $ 596,652   $ 553,058  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Excelerate Energy, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
 

1.General business information

Excelerate Energy, Inc. (“Excelerate” and together with its subsidiaries, “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”) offers flexible liquefied natural gas 
(“LNG”) solutions, providing integrated services along the LNG value chain. We offer a full range of flexible regasification services, from floating storage 
and regasification units (“FSRUs”) to infrastructure development, to LNG and natural gas supply. Excelerate was formed as a holding company to own, as 
its sole material asset, a controlling equity interest in Excelerate Energy Limited Partnership (“EELP”), a Delaware limited partnership.

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, George B. Kaiser (together with his affiliates other than the Company, “Kaiser”) owned directly or 
indirectly approximately 76.1% and 75.7%, respectively, of the ownership interests in EELP. The remaining 23.9% and 24.3% of the ownership interests 
were held by the Company as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. 

Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements and related notes include the assets, liabilities and results of operations of Excelerate and its 
consolidated subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) for interim financial 
information and in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. All transactions among Excelerate and its 
consolidated subsidiaries have been eliminated in consolidation. In management’s opinion, all adjustments necessary for a fair statement are reflected in 
the interim periods. The year-end consolidated balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements, but the consolidated balance sheet 
data does not include all disclosures required by GAAP. These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 
audited consolidated financial statements of Excelerate and the related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31, 2023 (the “2023 Annual Report”). Operating results for the periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the 
full year or any future period. Certain amounts in prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

2.Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the Company's significant accounting policies can be found in Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the 2023 Annual Report. Other than the updates noted below, there were no significant updates or revisions to 
our accounting policies during the three months ended March 31, 2024.
 
Revenue recognition

The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 842, Leases (“ASC 842”), and ASC 606, 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”). The Company’s contracts with customers may contain one or several performance obligations 
usually consisting of FSRU and terminal services including time charter, regasification and other services and gas sales. For revenue accounted for 
under ASC 606, the Company determines the amount of revenue to be recognized through application of the five-step model outlined in ASC 606 as 
follows: when (i) a customer contract is identified, (ii) the performance obligation(s) have been identified, (iii) the transaction price has been determined, 
(iv) the transaction price has been allocated to the performance obligation(s) in the contract, and (v) the performance obligation(s) are satisfied. The 
Company recognizes revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company 
expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Sales, value-added, and other taxes collected concurrently with the provision of goods or 
services are excluded from revenue when the customer is the primary obligor of such taxes.

Time charter, regasification and other services

The Company determined that its long-term time charter and terminal use contracts typically contain a lease. The lease of our vessels and 
terminals represents the use of the asset without any associated performance obligations or warranties (a lease component) and is accounted for in 
accordance with the provisions of ASC 842. These contracts may also contain non-lease components relating to operating the assets (i.e., provision of 
time charter, regasification and other services). 

 The Company allocated the contract consideration between the lease component and non-lease components on a relative standalone selling 
price basis. The Company utilizes a combination of approaches to estimate the standalone selling prices, when the directly observable selling price is not 
available, by utilizing information available such as market conditions and prices, entity-specific factors, and internal estimates when market data is not 
available. Given that there are no observable standalone selling prices for any of these components, judgment is required in determining the standalone 
selling price of each component. Certain time charter party (“TCP”) agreements with customers allow an option to extend the contract. Agreements which 
include renewal and termination options are included in the lease term if we believe they are “reasonably certain” to be exercised by the lessee or if an 
option to extend is controlled by the Company. Leases are classified based upon defined criteria either as a sales-type, direct financing, or an operating 
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Excelerate Energy, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
 

lease. For time charter contracts classified as operating leases, revenues from the lease component of the contracts are recognized on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the charter.

Since our adoption of ASC 842, the Company has applied the practical expedient to combine the lease component with our drydocking 
requirements (a non-lease component) in our leases classified as operating leases. During the first quarter of 2024, the Company adopted the practical 
expedient to also combine the lease component of our vessel leases classified as operating leases with time charter, regasification and other services 
provided in connection with our time charters (a non-lease component). In the agreements which we have applied this practical expedient, we 
determined that the timing and pattern of transfer of the lease and non-lease components is the same and that the lease component is the predominant 
characteristic. As a result, the combined components are presented as a single lease component under ASC 842.

 The lease component of time charter contracts that are accounted for as sales-type leases is recognized over the lease term using the effective 
interest rate method. The underlying asset is derecognized and the net investment in the lease is recorded. The net investment in the lease is increased 
by interest income and decreased by payments collected. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company has two sales-type leases (for 
Summit LNG and Excellence). The provision of time charter, regasification and other services on the time charter contracts is considered a non-lease 
component and for our sales-type leases is accounted for as a separate performance obligation in accordance with the provision of ASC 606. 
Additionally, the Company has contracts with customers to provide time charter, regasification, and other services that do not contain a lease and are 
within the scope of ASC 606.

The provision of time charter, regasification and other services is considered a single performance obligation recognized evenly over time as our 
services are rendered or consistent with the customer’s proportionate right to use our assets. The Company considers our services as a series of distinct 
services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer. The Company recognizes revenue when obligations 
under the terms of our contracts with our customers are satisfied. We have applied the practical expedient to recognize revenue in proportion to the 
amount that we have the right to invoice. Certain charges incurred by the Company associated with the provision of services are reimbursable. This 
variable consideration is recognized in revenue once the performance obligation is complete and the receivable amount is determinable.

For time charter and terminal use contracts that are accounted for as sales-type leases, the provision of time charter, regasification, and other 
services includes a performance obligation for drydocking that occurs every five years. The Company engages third parties to perform the drydocking, 
but the Company is deemed to be the principal of the transaction as it does not transfer any risk to the third parties, therefore the Company recognizes 
drydock revenue on a gross basis. The Company allocates a portion of the contract revenues to the performance obligation for future drydocking costs. 
Revenue allocated to drydocking is deferred and recognized when the drydocking service is complete. The deferred drydock revenue is presented within 
other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Gas sales

As part of its operations, the Company sells natural gas and LNG generally through its use of its FSRU fleet and terminals. Gas sales revenues 
are recognized at the point in time at which each unit of natural gas or LNG is transferred to the control of the customer. This varies depending on the 
contract terms, but typically occurs when the cargo is regasified and injected into a pipeline, when the LNG is transferred to another vessel, or when title 
and risk of loss of natural gas or LNG has otherwise transferred to a customer. Accommodation fees related to the diversion of cargos are recorded when 
the performance obligation is complete.

Contract assets and liabilities

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections results in the recognition of receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities. 
Receivables represent the unconditional right to payment for services rendered and goods provided. Unbilled receivables, accrued revenue, or contract 
assets represent services rendered that have not been invoiced and are reported within accounts receivable, net or other assets on the consolidated 
balance sheets. Contract liabilities arise from advanced payments and are recorded as deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets. The 
deferred revenue is either recognized as revenue when services are rendered or amortized over the life of the related lease, depending on the service. 
Contract assets and liabilities are reported in a net position for each customer contract or consolidated contracts at the end of each reporting period. 
Contract liabilities are classified as current and noncurrent based on the expected timing of recognition of the revenue.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Accounting standards recently issued but not yet adopted

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2023-07, “Segment Reporting 
(Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures” (“ASU 2023-07”), which requires incremental disclosure related to a public entity’s 
reportable segments. The amendments are effective for public entities with fiscal years beginning 
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after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is 
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2023-07 on its Consolidated Financial Statements and related disclosures.

3.Fair value of financial instruments

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The 
Company’s assessment of significance for a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value 
assets and liabilities and the placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets and liabilities by level within the fair value hierarchy that are measured at fair value on 
a recurring basis as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands):

  March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  

Financial assets       
Derivative financial instruments Level 2 $ 4,411  $ 3,201 

Financial liabilities       
Derivative financial instruments Level 2 $ —   $ (1,793)

 
As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, all derivatives were determined to be classified as Level 2 fair value instruments. No cash 

collateral has been posted or held as of March 31, 2024 or December 31, 2023. This table excludes cash on hand and assets and liabilities that are 
measured at historical cost or any basis other than fair value. The carrying amounts of other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, 
restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short maturities. The carrying 
value of long-term debt approximates fair value due to the variable rate nature of these financial instruments.

The determination of the fair values above incorporates factors including not only the credit standing of the counterparties involved, but also the 
impact of the Company’s nonperformance risks on its liabilities.

The values of the Level 2 interest rate swaps were determined using expected cash flow models based on observable market inputs, including 
published and quoted interest rate data from public data sources. Specifically, the fair values of the interest rate swaps were derived from the implied 
forward Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) yield curve for the same period as the future interest rate swap settlements. We have consistently 
applied these valuation techniques in all periods presented.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measures

Certain non-financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis and are subject to fair value adjustments in certain 
circumstances, such as equity investments or long-lived assets subject to impairment. For assets and liabilities measured on a non-recurring basis during 
the year, separate quantitative disclosures about the fair value measurements would be required for each major category. The Company did not record 
any material impairments on the equity investments or long-lived assets during the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023.

4.Accounts receivable, net

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, accounts receivable, net consisted of the following (in thousands): 
 
 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
Trade receivables $ 60,337   $ 92,881  
Accrued revenue  5,883   4,429 
Amounts receivable – related party  412    192  
Allowance for doubtful accounts  (216 )   (217 )

Accounts receivable, net $ 66,416   $ 97,285  
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5.Derivative financial instruments

The following table summarizes the notional values related to the Company’s derivative instruments outstanding at March 31, 2024 (in thousands):
 
 March 31, 2024  
Interest rate swaps $ 238,850  
 

(1)Number of open positions and gross notional values do not measure the Company’s risk of loss, quantify risk or represent assets or liabilities of the Company. Instead, they 
indicate the relative size of the derivative instruments and are used in the calculation of the amounts to be exchanged between counterparties upon settlements.

The following table presents the fair value of each classification of the Company’s derivative instruments designated as hedging instruments as of 
March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands): 
 
 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  

Cash flow hedges      
Current assets $ 3,194  $ 2,653 
Non-current assets  1,217   548  
Current liabilities  —    (14)
Non-current liabilities  —    (1,779)

Net derivative assets $ 4,411  $ 1,408 
 

The current and non-current portions of derivative assets are included within other current assets and other assets, respectively, on the 
consolidated balance sheets. The current and non-current portions of derivative liabilities are included within accrued liabilities and other liabilities and 
other long-term liabilities, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets.

Derivatives Accounted for as Cash Flow Hedges

The Company’s cash flow hedges include interest rate swaps that are hedges of variability in forecasted interest payments due to changes in the 
interest rate on SOFR-based borrowings, a summary which includes the following designations:

•In 2018, the Company entered into two long-term interest rate swap agreements with a major financial institution. The swaps, which became 
effective in October 2018 and expire in April 2030, are used to hedge approximately 70% of the variability in interest payments/interest risk on the 
2017 Bank Loans (as defined herein).

•In 2023, the Company entered into long-term interest rate swap agreements with multiple major financial institutions. This arrangement is used to 
hedge the variability of the interest payments/interest risk on the Term Loan Facility (as defined herein) and will expire in March 2027. In the fourth 
quarter of 2023, we paid down a portion of the principal outstanding on the Term Loan Facility and a proportionate amount of the interest rate 
swaps was settled.

The following tables present the gains and losses from the Company’s derivative instruments designated in a cash flow hedging relationship 
recognized in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):

Derivatives Designated in  
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Other Comprehensive 

Income on Derivatives  
Cash Flow Hedging  For the three months ended March 31,  

Relationship  2024   2023  

Interest rate swaps  $ 4,151  $ 389  
       

Derivatives Designated in
 Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Accumulated 

Other Comprehensive Income into Income  
Cash Flow Hedging Location of Gain (Loss) Reclassified from For the three months ended March 31,  

Relationship Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income into Income 2024   2023  

Interest rate swaps Interest expense $ 1,163  $ 497  

The amount of gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income as of March 31, 2024 and expected to be reclassified within the next 12 
months is $3.2 million.
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6.Other current assets

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, other current assets consisted of the following (in thousands): 

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
Prepaid expenses $ 7,495  $ 8,139 
Prepaid expenses – related party  2,033   2,162 
Tax receivables  8,607   8,783 
Inventories

 
1,088

   
2,946

 
Other receivables  7,428   5,326 

Other current assets $ 26,651   $ 27,356  

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, we recorded a lower of cost or net realizable value inventory write-down of $1.0 million. This write-
down is included in direct cost of gas sales on our consolidated statements of income. No write-down was recorded for the three months ended March 
31, 2024.

7.Property and equipment, net

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company’s property and equipment, net consisted of the following (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  

Vessels $ 2,488,355   $ 2,487,322  
Buoy and pipeline  15,568    15,568  
Finance lease right-of-use assets  40,007    40,007  
Other equipment  18,409    18,366  
Assets in progress  113,521    93,341  

Less accumulated depreciation  (1,025,656 )   (1,004,825 )
Property and equipment, net $ 1,650,204   $ 1,649,779  

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, depreciation expense was $22.0 million and $24.4 million, respectively.

8.Accrued liabilities

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  

Accrued vessel and cargo expenses $ 53,198   $ 35,055  
Payroll and related liabilities  11,976    19,766  
Accrued turnover taxes  115    5,810 
Current portion of TRA liability  6,067   6,067 
Current portion of operating lease liabilities  1,714   1,744 
Other accrued liabilities  20,541    21,354  

Accrued liabilities $ 93,611   $ 89,796  
 

9.Long-term debt, net

The Company’s long-term debt, net consists of the following (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
Term Loan Facility $ 180,742   $ 185,430  
Experience Vessel Financing  120,656    123,750  
2017 Bank Loans  72,157    74,013  
EE Revolver  —    —  

Total debt  373,555    383,193  
Less unamortized debt issuance costs  (6,645)   (7,212)
Total debt, net  366,910    375,981  
Less current portion, net  (44,383 )   (42,614 )

Total long-term debt, net $ 322,527   $ 333,367  
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The following table shows the range of interest rates and weighted average interest rates incurred on our variable-rate debt obligations during the 
three months ended March 31, 2024.

 For the three months ended March 31, 2024
 Range  Weighted Average
Experience Vessel Financing 8.8%  8.8%
2017 Bank Loans 8.3% – 10.2%  9.8%
Term Loan Facility 8.4%  8.4%
EE Revolver N/A  N/A

(1)Weighted average interest rate, net of the impact of settled derivatives, was 7.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. 
(2)Weighted average interest rate, net of the impact of settled derivatives, was 6.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Experience Vessel Financing

In December 2016, the Company entered into a sale leaseback agreement with a third party to provide $247.5 million of financing for Experience 
(the “Experience Vessel Financing”). Due to the Company’s requirement to repurchase the vessel at the end of the term, the transaction was accounted 
for as a failed sale leaseback (a financing transaction). Under the Experience Vessel Financing agreement, the Company makes quarterly principal 
payments of $3.1 million and interest payments at the three-month SOFR plus 3.4% through the loan’s maturity in December 2033. 

In the second quarter of 2023, the Company executed an amendment to convert the reference rate in the Experience Vessel Financing from the 
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) to the SOFR yield curve. Prior to the amendment, the Company made interest payments at the three-month 
LIBOR plus 3.25%.

2017 Bank Loans

Under the Company's financing agreement for the Moheshkhali LNG terminal in Bangladesh (the “2017 Bank Loans”), the Company entered into 
two loan agreements with external banks. Under the first agreement, the Company borrowed $32.8 million, makes semi-annual payments and accrues 
interest at the six-month SOFR plus 2.85% through the loan maturity date of October 15, 2029. In the fourth quarter of 2023, the agreement was 
amended to convert the reference rate from the LIBOR to the SOFR yield curve effective on the first interest payment date occurring after June 30, 2023. 
Prior to the amendment, the Company made interest payments at the six-month LIBOR plus 2.42%.

Under the second agreement, the Company borrowed $92.8 million, makes quarterly payments and accrues interest at the three-month SOFR 
plus 4.76% through the loan maturity of October 15, 2029. In the fourth quarter of 2023, the agreement was amended to convert the reference rate from 
the LIBOR to the SOFR yield curve effective on the first interest payment date occurring after June 30, 2023. Prior to the amendment, the Company 
made interest payments at the three-month LIBOR plus 4.50%.

Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan Facility

On April 18, 2022, EELP entered into a senior secured revolving credit agreement, by and among EELP, as borrower, Excelerate, as parent, the 
lenders party thereto, the issuing banks party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, pursuant to which the lenders and 
issuing banks thereunder made available a revolving credit facility (the “EE Revolver”), including a letter of credit sub-facility, to EELP. The EE Revolver 
enabled us to borrow up to $350.0 million over a three-year term originally set to expire in April 2025.

On March 17, 2023, EELP entered into an amended and restated senior secured credit agreement (“Amended Credit Agreement”), by and among 
EELP, as borrower, Excelerate, as parent, the lenders party thereto, the issuing banks party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent. 
Under the Amended Credit Agreement, EELP obtained a new $250.0 million term loan facility (the “Term Loan Facility” and, together with the EE 
Revolver, as amended by the Amended Credit Agreement, the “EE Facilities”). The EE Facilities mature in March 2027. Proceeds from the Term Loan 
Facility were used to purchase Sequoia in April 2023. Proceeds from the EE Revolver may be used for working capital and other general corporate 
purposes and up to $269.5 million of the EE Revolver may be used for letters of credit.

Borrowings under the EE Facilities bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the term SOFR reference rate for such period plus an applicable 
margin, which applicable margin is based on EELP’s consolidated total leverage ratio as defined and calculated under the Amended Credit Agreement 
and can range from 2.75% to 3.50%. The unused portion of the EE Revolver commitments is subject to an unused commitment fee calculated at a rate 
per annum ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% based on EELP's consolidated total leverage ratio.

In December 2023, we paid off $55.2 million of the principal outstanding on our Term Loan Facility.
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As of March 31, 2024, the Company had issued $40.0 million in letters of credit under the EE Revolver. As a result of the EE Revolver’s financial 
ratio covenants and after taking into account the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, all of the $310.0 million of undrawn capacity was 
available for additional borrowings as of March 31, 2024.

As of March 31, 2024, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under its debt facilities.

10.Long-term debt – related party

The Company’s related party long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  

Exquisite Vessel Financing $ 177,848   $ 180,029  
Less current portion  (8,487)   (8,336)

Total long-term related party debt $ 169,361   $ 171,693  
 
Exquisite Vessel Financing

In June 2018, the Company entered into a sale leaseback agreement with Nakilat Excelerate LLC, its equity method investment, to provide $220.0 
million of financing for Exquisite at 7.73% (the “Exquisite Vessel Financing”). The agreement was recognized as a failed sale leaseback transaction and 
was treated as financing due to the Company’s lease of the vessel.

11.Equity

Class A Common Stock

The Class A Common Stock outstanding represents 100% of the rights of the holders of all classes of our outstanding common stock to share in 
distributions from Excelerate, except for the right of Class B stockholders to receive the par value of the Class B Common Stock, $0.001 par value per 
share (“Class B Common Stock”) upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up or an exchange of Class B interests of EELP.

Class B Common Stock

Excelerate Energy Holdings, LLC (“EE Holdings”), a company controlled directly and indirectly by Kaiser, holds all of the shares of our outstanding 
Class B Common Stock. The Class B Common Stock entitles the holder to one vote for each share of Class B Common Stock. Holders of shares of our 
Class B Common Stock vote together with holders of our Class A Common Stock as a single class on all matters on which stockholders are entitled to 
vote generally, except as otherwise provided in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or required by law. 

As the only Class B stockholder, EE Holdings controlled 76.1% and 75.7% of the combined voting power of our common stock as of March 31, 
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The EELP Limited Partnership Agreement (the “EELP LPA”) entitles partners (and certain permitted 
transferees thereof) to exchange their Class B interests for shares of Class A Common Stock on a one-for-one basis or, at our election, for cash. When a 
Class B interest is exchanged for a share of Class A Common Stock, the corresponding share of Class B Common Stock will automatically be canceled. 
The EELP LPA permits the Class B limited partners to exercise their exchange rights subject to certain timing and other conditions. When a Class B 
interest is surrendered for exchange, it will not be available for reissuance.

The following table summarizes the changes in ownership: 

  Class A Common Stock           

  Issued   
Less: Treasury 

Stock   Outstanding   
Class B 

Common Stock   Total   

Class A 
Ownership 
Percentage  

Balance at January 1, 2024   26,284,027    20,624    26,263,403    82,021,389    108,284,792    24.3%
Restricted stock units vesting   95,466    39,702    55,764    –    55,764     
Shares withheld for taxes   (13,301 )   –    (13,301 )   –    (13,301 )    
Share repurchases   –    588,030    (588,030 )   –    (588,030 )    
Balance at March 31, 2024   26,366,192    648,356    25,717,836    82,021,389    107,739,225    23.9%
                   
Balance at January 1, 2023   26,254,167    –    26,254,167    82,021,389    108,275,556    24.2%
Balance at March 31, 2023   26,254,167    –    26,254,167    82,021,389    108,275,556    24.2%
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EELP Distribution Rights

The Company, as the general partner of EELP, has the right to determine when distributions will be made to holders of interests and the amount of 
any such distributions. If a distribution is authorized, such distribution will be made to the holders of Class A interests and Class B interests on a pro rata 
basis in accordance with the number of interests held by such holder.

Dividends and Distributions

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, EELP declared distributions to all interest holders, including Excelerate. Excelerate has used and 
will continue to use proceeds from such distributions to pay dividends to holders of Class A Common Stock. The following table details the distributions 
and dividends for the periods presented:

    Class B Interests   Class A Common Stock  

Dividend and Distribution for the Quarter Ended  Date Paid or To Be Paid  
Distributions Paid or 

To Be Paid   
Total Dividends 

Declared   
Dividend Declared per 

Share  
    (In thousands)   
March 31, 2024

 June 6, 2024  $
2,051

  $ 649   $
0.025

 
December 31, 2023  March 28, 2024  $ 2,051  $ 673   $ 0.025 

Albania Power Project

In April 2022, Excelerate established an entity to provide a temporary power solution in Albania. Excelerate is a 90% owner of the project 
(“Albania Power Project”) and has received $5.6 million in cash contributions from the minority owner as of March 31, 2024. The Albania Power Project is 
fully consolidated in our financial statements.

Repurchase of Equity Securities

On February 22, 2024, our board of directors approved a share repurchase program to purchase up to $50.0 million of our Class A Common Stock 
(the “Program”). The Program does not obligate us to acquire any specific number of shares and will expire on February 28, 2026, and the Program may 
be suspended, extended, modified or discontinued at any time. During the three months ended March 31, 2024, the Company repurchased 
approximately 588,030 shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock at a weighted average price of $15.92 per share, for a total net cost of 
approximately $9.4 million. In accordance with the EELP LPA and in conjunction with the Program, EELP purchased Class A interests from Excelerate in 
proportion to the Class A Common Stock purchased during the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Under the Program, repurchases can be made using a variety of methods, which may include open market purchases, block trades, privately 
negotiated transactions and/or a non-discretionary trading plan, all in compliance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and other 
applicable legal requirements. The timing, manner, price and amount of any Class A Common Stock repurchases under the Program are determined by 
management in its discretion and depend on a variety of factors, including legal requirements, price, and business, economic, and market conditions.

12.Earnings per share

The following table presents the computation of earnings per share for the periods shown below (in thousands, except share and per share 
amounts):

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
Net income $ 28,140   $ 30,739  

Less net income attributable to non-controlling interest  21,816    23,895  
Net income attributable to shareholders – basic and diluted $ 6,324  $ 6,844 
      
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic  26,161,691    26,254,167  

Dilutive effect of unvested restricted common stock  19,549    15,695  
Dilutive effect of unvested performance units  810    —  

Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted  26,182,050    26,269,862  
      

Earnings per share      
Basic $ 0.24   $ 0.26  
Diluted $ 0.24   $ 0.26  
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The following table presents the common stock share equivalents excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the periods 
shown below, as they would have had an antidilutive effect:

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
Restricted common stock  7,124   783  
Performance stock units  342    309  
Class B Common Stock  82,021,389    82,021,389  
 

13.Leases

Lessee arrangements

Finance leases

Certain enforceable vessel charters and pipeline capacity agreements are classified as finance leases, and the right-of-use assets are included in 
property and equipment, net on the consolidated balance sheets. Lease obligations are recognized based on the rate implicit in the lease or the 
Company’s incremental borrowing rate at lease commencement. 

As of March 31, 2024, the Company was a lessee in finance lease arrangements on one pipeline capacity agreement and one tugboat. These 
arrangements were determined to be finance leases as their terms represent the majority of the economic life of their respective assets. 

In March 2023, Excelerate exercised its option to purchase Sequoia, which triggered a reassessment of the associated lease. As our acquisition of 
Sequoia was reasonably certain as of March 31, 2023, the lease on the vessel was reclassified from an operating lease to a financing lease.

Finance lease liabilities as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 consisted of the following (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
Finance lease liabilities $ 206,885   $ 211,887  
Less current portion of finance lease liabilities  (22,411 )   (22,080 )

Finance lease liabilities, long-term $ 184,474   $ 189,807  

Operating leases

As of December 31, 2023, the Company was a lessee in a terminal use lease, which was accounted for as an operating lease. In January 2024, 
this agreement transitioned to a TCP agreement.

Operating lease right-of-use assets are included within other assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The current and non-current portions of 
operating lease liabilities are included within accrued liabilities and other liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively, on the consolidated 
balance sheets.

Additionally, the Company has operating leases for offices in various locations in which operations are performed. Such leases will often include 
options to extend the lease and the Company will include option periods that, on commencement date, it is reasonably certain the Company will 
exercise. Variable lease costs relate to certain lease agreements, which include payments that vary for items such as inflation adjustments, or common 
area charges. Variable lease costs that are not dependent on an index are excluded from the lease payments that comprise the operating lease liability 
and are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. None of the Company’s operating leases contain any residual value guarantees.
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A maturity analysis of the Company’s operating and finance lease liabilities (excluding short-term leases) at March 31, 2024 is as follows (in 
thousands):

Year Operating   Finance  
Remainder of 2024 $ 1,562  $ 24,936  
2025  1,806   33,235  
2026  1,434   33,235  
2027  1,025   33,235  
2028  886    27,584  
Thereafter  448    113,152  

Total lease payments $ 7,161  $ 265,377  
Less: imputed interest  (845 )   (58,492 )
Carrying value of lease liabilities  6,316   206,885  
Less: current portion  (1,714)   (22,411 )
Carrying value of long-term lease liabilities $ 4,602  $ 184,474  

As of March 31, 2024, the Company’s weighted average remaining lease term for operating and finance leases was 4.1 years and 8.8 years, 
respectively, with a weighted average discount rate of 6.2% and 6.3%, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, the Company’s weighted average 
remaining lease term for operating and finance leases was 4.3 years and 9.1 years, respectively, with a weighted average discount rate of 6.2% and 
6.3%, respectively. 

The Company’s total lease costs for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 recognized in the consolidated statements of income 
consisted of the following (in thousands):

 For the three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  

Amortization of finance lease right-of-use assets $ 652   $ 1,017 
Interest on finance lease liabilities  3,282   4,085 
Operating lease expense  449    8,454 
Short-term lease expense  253    174  

Total lease costs $ 4,636  $ 13,730  

Other information related to leases for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows (in thousands):

 For the three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  

Operating cash flows for finance leases
$ 3,282 

 
$ 4,085 

Financing cash flows for finance leases  5,001   5,297 
Operating cash flows for operating leases  520    8,314 
 

14.Revenue

The following table presents the Company’s revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):

 For the three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  

Revenue from leases $ 137,910   $ 102,966  
Revenue from contracts with customers      

Time charter, regasification and other services  19,084    15,611  
Gas sales

 43,119    92,479  
Total revenue $ 200,113   $ 211,056  

As a result of the Company’s adoption of the ASC 842 practical expedient discussed in Note 2 – Summary of significant accounting policies, $21.4 
million in the three months ended March 31, 2023, was reclassified from Time charter, regasification and other services to Revenue from leases to 
conform with the current period presentation.
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Lease revenue

The Company’s time charter contracts are accounted for as operating or sales-type leases. The Company’s revenue from leases is presented 
within revenues in the consolidated statements of income and for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 consists of the following (in 
thousands):

 For the three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  

Operating lease income $ 122,876   $ 84,976  
Sales-type lease income  15,034    17,990  

Total revenue from leases $ 137,910   $ 102,966  

Sales-type leases

Sales-type lease income is interest income that is presented within lease revenues on the consolidated statements of income. The Company 
leased two vessels and a terminal under sales-type leases as it is reasonably certain that the ownership of these assets will transfer to the customer at 
the end of the term. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, the Company recorded lease income from the net investment in the leases within 
revenue from lease contracts of $15.0 million compared to $18.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023.

Operating leases

Revenue from time charter contracts accounted for as operating leases is recognized by the Company on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
contract. As of March 31, 2024, the Company is the lessor to time charter agreements with customers on eight of its vessels. The following represents 
the amount of property and equipment that is leased to customers as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
Property and equipment $ 2,460,504   $ 2,184,347  
Accumulated depreciation  (950,849 )   (929,141 )

Property and equipment, net $ 1,509,655   $ 1,255,206  

The future minimum revenues presented in the table below should not be construed to reflect total charter hire revenues for any of the years 
presented. Minimum future revenues included below are based on the fixed components and do not include variable or contingent revenue. Additionally, 
revenue generated from short-term charters is not included as the duration of each contract is less than a year. As of March 31, 2024, the minimum 
contractual future revenues to be received under the time charters during the next five years and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

Year Sales-type   Operating  
Remainder of 2024 $ 66,009   $ 332,850  
2025  87,612    379,700  
2026  87,612    354,327  
2027  87,612    363,280  
2028  80,848    291,975  
Thereafter  411,507    1,031,014  

Total undiscounted $ 821,200   $ 2,753,146  
Less: imputed interest  (424,982 )    
Net investment in sales-type leases  396,218     
Less: current portion  (18,034 )    

Non-current net investment in sales-type leases $ 378,184     
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Revenue from contracts with customers 

The following tables show disaggregated revenues from customers attributable to the region in which the party to the applicable agreement has its 
principal place of business (in thousands):

 For the three months ended March 31, 2024  
    Revenue from contracts with customers     
 Revenue from   TCP, Regas   Gas   Total  
 leases   and other   sales   revenue  

Asia Pacific $ 15,034   $ 14,781   $ 41,455   $ 71,270  
Latin America  55,801    —    —    55,801  
Middle East  39,816    —    —    39,816  
Europe  27,259    —    —    27,259  
Other  —    4,303   1,664   5,967 

Total revenue $ 137,910   $ 19,084   $ 43,119   $ 200,113  
 

 For the three months ended March 31, 2023  
    Revenue from contracts with customers     
 Revenue from   TCP, Regas   Gas   Total  
 leases   and other   sales   revenue  

Asia Pacific $ 17,991   $ 10,666   $ —   $ 28,657  
Latin America  30,055    —    70,253    100,308  
Middle East  36,107    —    —    36,107  
Europe  18,813    —    22,226    41,039  
Other  —    4,945   —    4,945 

Total revenue $ 102,966   $ 15,611   $ 92,479   $ 211,056  

(1)Includes Pakistan and the UAE.

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Under most gas sales contracts, invoicing occurs once the Company’s performance obligations have been satisfied, at which point payment is 
unconditional. Invoicing timing for TCP, regasification and other services varies and occurs according to the contract. As of March 31, 2024 and 
December 31, 2023, receivables from contracts with customers were $23.8 million and $73.8 million, respectively. These amounts are presented within 
accounts receivable, net on the consolidated balance sheets. In addition, revenue for services recognized in excess of the invoiced amounts, or accrued 
revenue, outstanding at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, was $0.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively. Accrued revenue represents current 
contract assets that will turn into accounts receivable within the next 12 months and be collected during the Company’s normal business operating cycle. 
Accrued revenue is presented in accounts receivable, net on the consolidated balance sheets. Other items included in accounts receivable, net 
represent receivables associated with leases, which are accounted for in accordance with the leasing standard. There were no write downs of trade 
receivables for lease or time charter services or contract assets for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023.

There were no contract liabilities from advance payments in excess of revenue recognized from services as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 
2023. If the performance obligations are expected to be satisfied during the next 12 months, the contract liabilities are classified within current portion of 
deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets. Amounts to be recognized in revenue after 12 months are recorded in other long-term liabilities. 
The remaining portion of current deferred revenue relates to the lease component of the Company’s time charter contracts, which are accounted for in 
accordance with the leasing standard. Noncurrent deferred revenue presented in other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets 
represents payments allocated to the Company’s performance obligation for drydocking services within time charter contracts in which the lease 
component is accounted for as a sales-type lease, customer requested upgrades made to certain vessels, and vessel repositioning. Revenue will be 
recognized as the performance obligations are complete.

The following table reflects the changes in our liabilities related to long-term contracts with customers as of March 31, 2024 (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024  
Deferred revenues, beginning of period $ 56,267  

Cash received but not yet recognized  20,986  
Revenue recognized from prior period deferral  (28,378 )

Deferred revenues, end of period $ 48,875  
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Some of the Company’s contracts are short-term in nature with a contract term of less than a year. The Company applied the optional exemption 
not to report any unfulfilled performance obligations related to these contracts. 

In November 2023, Excelerate signed a 15-year LNG sale and purchase agreement (the “Petrobangla SPA”) with Bangladesh Oil, Gas & Mineral 
Corporation (“Petrobangla”). Under the agreement, Petrobangla has agreed to purchase LNG from Excelerate beginning in 2026. Excelerate will deliver 
0.85 million tonnes per annum (“MTPA”) of LNG in 2026 and 2027 and 1.0 MTPA from 2028 to 2040. The take-or-pay LNG volumes are expected to be 
delivered through Excelerate’s two existing FSRUs in Bangladesh, Excellence and Summit LNG.

The Company has long-term arrangements with customers in which the Company provides regasification and other services as part of TCP 
contracts. The price under these agreements is typically stated in the contracts. Beginning in 2026, we will provide take-or-pay LNG volumes to 
Bangladesh through the Petrobangla SPA. The estimated fixed transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under these 
arrangements is $7,874.4 million as of March 31, 2024. The Company expects to recognize revenue from contracts exceeding one year over the 
following time periods (in thousands):
 
Remainder of 2024 $ 32,515  
2025  43,157  
2026  499,054  
2027  484,105  
2028  560,739  
Thereafter  6,254,817  

Total expected revenue $ 7,874,387  
 

15.Long-term incentive compensation

In April 2022, Excelerate adopted the Excelerate Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “LTI Plan”). The LTI Plan was adopted to promote and closely 
align the interests of Excelerate's employees, officers, non-employee directors and other service providers and its stockholders by providing stock-based 
compensation and other performance-based compensation. The LTI Plan allows for the grant of up to 10.8 million shares, stock options, stock 
appreciation rights, alone or in conjunction with other awards; restricted stock and restricted stock units, including performance units; incentive bonuses, 
which may be paid in cash, stock or a combination thereof; and other stock-based awards. The share pool increases on January 1st of each calendar 
year by a number of shares equal to 4% of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock on the preceding December 31st. The LTI Plan is 
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s board of directors.

The Company’s stock option and restricted stock unit awards both qualify as equity awards and are amortized into selling, general and 
administrative expenses and cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses on the consolidated statements of income on a straight-line basis. Stock 
options were granted to certain employees of Excelerate, vest over five years and expire ten years from the date of grant. The Company also issued 
restricted stock units to directors and certain employees that vest ratably over one, two or three years. In 2023, the Company issued performance units to 
certain employees that cliff vest in three years. The performance units contain both a market condition related to Excelerate’s relative total shareholder 
return as compared to its peer group and a performance condition related to the Company’s EBITDA. In 2024, the Company issued performance units to 
certain employees that cliff vest in three years. The performance units contain two market conditions, one related to Excelerate’s relative total shareholder 
return as compared to its peer group and another related to the Company’s annualized absolute total shareholder return.

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized long-term incentive compensation expense for all of its awards 
as shown below (in thousands):

  For the three months ended March 31,  
  2024   2023  
Stock-based compensation expense $ 1,377  $ 357  
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Stock options

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and provides information for outstanding and 
exercisable options as of March 31, 2024:

  Number of Options   
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price   

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life  
     (per share)   (years)  
Outstanding at January 1, 2024  317,601   $ 24.00     

Granted  —    —     
Exercised  —    —     
Forfeited or expired  —    —     

Outstanding at March 31, 2024  317,601   $ 24.00    7.8  
Exercisable at March 31, 2024  74,164   $ 24.00    7.1  

As of March 31, 2024, the Company had $2.5 million in unrecognized compensation costs related to its stock options that it expects to recognize 
over a weighted average period of 3.0 years.

Restricted stock unit awards

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and provides information for unvested 
shares as of March 31, 2024:

  Number of Shares   
Weighted Average Fair 

Value  
     (per share)  
Unvested at January 1, 2024  318,150   $ 20.88  

Granted  461,715    14.98  
Vested  (95,466 )   21.62  
Forfeited  —    —  

Unvested at March 31, 2024  684,399   $ 16.79  

As of March 31, 2024 the Company had $11.0 million in unrecognized compensation costs related to its restricted stock unit awards that it expects 
to recognize over a weighted average period of 2.5 years.

Performance units

In 2023, the Company granted performance units that entitle the holder to between zero and two shares of the Company’s Class A Common 
Stock based on results as compared to performance and market conditions. The performance condition relates to the Company’s EBITDA and the 
market condition relates to Excelerate’s relative total shareholder return as compared to its peer group. Changes in the Company’s expected EBITDA 
performance as compared to award metrics will be recorded to the consolidated statement of income over the vesting period.

In March 2024, the Company granted performance units that entitle the holder to between zero and two shares of the Company’s Class A 
Common Stock based on results as compared to two different market conditions, one related to Excelerate’s relative total shareholder return as 
compared to its peer group and another related to the Company’s annualized absolute total shareholder return.

The fair value of the performance units granted in 2024 and 2023 is calculated based on a Monte Carlo simulation of the grant’s market condition, 
which requires management to make assumptions regarding the risk-free interest rates, expected dividend yields and the expected volatility of the 
Company’s stock calculated based on a period of time generally commensurate with the expected term of the award. The risk-free interest rate is based 
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected volatility is based on the median of the historical volatility of the companies that 
comprise the Vanguard Energy ETF market index over the expected life of the granted units. The Company uses estimates of forfeitures to estimate the 
expected term of the grants. The reversal of any expense due to forfeitures is accounted for as they occur.
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The table below describes the assumptions used to value the awards granted in 2024 and 2023:

  2024   2023  
Risk-free interest rate  4.4 %  3.9 %
Expected volatility  50.6%  58.0%
Expected term 2.82 years   2.76 years  

The following table summarizes performance unit activity for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and provides information for unvested 
performance units (reflected at target performance) as of March 31, 2024: 

  Number of Units   
Weighted Average Fair 

Value  
     (per unit)  
Unvested at January 1, 2024  84,699   $ 28.80  

Granted  247,073    16.93  
Vested  —    —  
Forfeited  —    —  

Unvested at March 31, 2024  331,772   $ 20.02  

As of March 31, 2024, the Company had $5.7 million in unrecognized compensation costs related to its performance units that it expects to 
recognize over a weighted average period of 2.6 years.

16.Income taxes

In computing the provision for income taxes for interim periods, the Company estimates the annual effective tax rate for the full year, which is then 
applied to the actual year-to-date ordinary income (loss) and reflects the tax effects of discrete items in its provision for income taxes as they occur.

The provision for income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 was $6.9 million and $7.6 million, respectively. The decrease 
was primarily attributable to the year-over-year change in the amount and geographical distribution of income.

The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 was 19.7% and 19.8%, respectively. The decrease was primarily 
driven by the geographical distribution of income and the varying tax regimes of jurisdictions.

Excelerate is a corporation for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes. Excelerate’s accounting predecessor, EELP, is treated as a pass-
through entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, as such, has generally not been subject to U.S. federal income tax at the entity level.

The Company has international operations that are also subject to foreign income tax and U.S. corporate subsidiaries subject to U.S. federal tax. 
Therefore, its effective income tax rate is dependent on many factors, including the Company’s geographical distribution of income, a rate benefit 
attributable to the portion of the Company’s earnings not subject to corporate level taxes, and the impact of nondeductible items and foreign exchange 
impacts as well as varying tax regimes of jurisdictions. In one jurisdiction, the Company’s tax rate is significantly less than the applicable statutory rate as 
a result of a tax holiday that was granted. This tax holiday will expire in 2033 at the same time that our contract and revenue with our customer ends.

The Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (“OECD”) has established the Pillar Two Framework, which generally provides for 
a minimum effective tax rate of 15%. The Pillar Two Framework has been supported by over 130 countries worldwide. The effective dates are January 1, 
2024, and January 1, 2025, for different aspects of the directive. While the Company does not expect a resulting material change to our income tax 
provision for the current year, the Company is evaluating the potential impact of the Pillar Two Framework on future periods, pending legislative adoption 
by additional individual countries.

17.Related party transactions

The Company had one debt instrument with related parties as of March 31, 2024 – the Exquisite Vessel Financing. For details on this debt 
instrument, see Note 10 – Long-term debt – related party.

Kaiser has, over time, donated significant amounts of money to the George Kaiser Family Foundation (“the Foundation”). The Foundation has an 
independent board and Kaiser does not exert control over or have ownership in the Foundation. However, several of Kaiser’s close family members are 
on the board of directors of the Foundation and for the purposes of these accounts, where transactions with the Foundation occur, they are reported as 
related party transactions. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had no outstanding balance with the Foundation.
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The following transactions with related parties are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income (in thousands):

 For the three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
Fees reimbursable to Kaiser $ 69   $ 1,026 

The following balances with related parties are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
Amounts due from related parties $ 412   $ 192  
Amounts due to related parties  139    577  
Prepaid expenses – related party  2,033   2,162 

18.Concentration risk

The Company is subject to concentrations of credit risk principally from cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, derivative financial instruments, 
and accounts receivable. The Company limits the exposure to credit risk with cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash by placing it with highly rated 
financial institutions. Additionally, the Company evaluates the counterparty risk of potential customers based on credit evaluations, including analysis of 
the counterparty’s established credit rating or assessment of the counterparty’s creditworthiness based on an analysis of financial condition when a credit 
rating is not available, historical experience, and other factors.

To manage credit risk associated with the interest rate hedges, the Company selects counterparties based on their credit ratings and limits the 
exposure to any single counterparty. The counterparties to our derivative contracts are major financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. 
The Company periodically monitors the credit risk of the counterparties and adjusts the hedging position as appropriate. The impact of credit risk, as well 
as the ability of each party to fulfill its obligations under our derivative financial instruments, is considered in determining the fair value of the contracts. 
Credit risk has not had a significant effect on the fair value of our derivative instruments. The Company does not have any credit risk-related contingent 
features or collateral requirements associated with our derivative contracts.

The following table shows customers with revenues of 10% or greater of total revenues:

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
Customer A  28%  10%
Customer B  19%  40%
Customer C  7 %  16%
 

Certain customers of ours may purchase a high volume of LNG and/or natural gas from us. These purchases can significantly increase their 
percentage of our total revenues as compared to those customers who are only FSRU and terminal service customers. This increase in revenue from 
their purchases is exacerbated in periods of high market pricing of LNG and natural gas. In conjunction with these LNG and natural gas sales, our direct 
cost of gas sales also increases by a similar percent due to the increase in volume and market pricing of LNG incurred for such revenue. As such, the 
changes in revenues by customer may be disproportionate to the relative increase in concentration risk within our operations.

Substantially all of the net book value of our long-lived assets are located outside the United States. The Company’s fixed assets are largely 
comprised of vessels that can be deployed globally due to their mobile nature. As such, the Company is not subject to significant concentration risk of 
fixed assets.

19.Commitments and contingencies

The Company may be involved in legal actions in the ordinary course of business, including governmental and administrative investigations, 
inquiries and proceedings concerning employment, labor, environmental and other claims. The Company will recognize a loss contingency in the 
consolidated financial statements when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The 
Company will disclose any loss contingencies that do not meet both conditions if there is a reasonable possibility that a loss may have been incurred. 
Gain contingencies are not recorded until realized.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s future LNG purchase obligations as of March 31, 2024 (in thousands):

LNG purchase obligations  $ 12,069,534  

(1)Purchase commitments will be based on either monthly Henry Hub natural gas futures or Brent Crude pricing, times a fixed percentage or plus a contractual spread where 
applicable. The total obligation is calculated using pricing as of March 31, 2024. These obligations may depend on supplier LNG facilities becoming operational, none of which are 
expected to begin within the next 12 months.

20.Supplemental noncash disclosures for consolidated statement of cash flows

Supplemental noncash disclosures for the consolidated statement of cash flows consist of the following (in thousands):

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
Supplemental cash flow information:      
Cash paid for taxes $ 8,019  $ 5,467 
Cash paid for interest  14,893    12,157  
Increase (decrease) in capital expenditures included in accounts payable  9,669   (3,498)
Finance lease right-of-use asset  —    263,503  
Accrual for additional repurchases of Class A Common Stock  929    —  

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the consolidated balance sheets as of 
March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands):

 March 31, 2024   December 31, 2023  
Cash and cash equivalents $ 578,882   $ 555,853  
Restricted cash – current  3,613   2,655 
Restricted cash – non-current  14,157    13,950  

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 596,652   $ 572,458  
 

21.Accumulated other comprehensive income

Changes in components of accumulated other comprehensive income were (in thousands):

  
Cumulative
translation
adjustment  

 
Qualifying
cash flow
hedges  

 
Share of OCI in
equity method

investee  
 

Total  
At January 1, 2024  $ (554 )  $ 428   $ 631   $ 505  

Other comprehensive income (loss)   20    4,151   (231 )   3,940 
Reclassification to income   15    (1,163)   (531 )   (1,679)
Reclassification to NCI   (26)   (2,266)   578    (1,714)

At March 31, 2024  $ (545 )  $ 1,150  $ 447   $ 1,052 
             
At January 1, 2023  $ (524 )  $ 551   $ 488   $ 515  

Other comprehensive income (loss)   (420 )   389    (321 )   (352 )
Reclassification to income   —    (497 )   (416 )   (913 )
Reclassification to NCI   

318
   81    

559
   

958
 

At March 31, 2023  $ (626 )  $ 524   $ 310   $ 208  
 

22.Subsequent events

Dividend Declaration

On May 2, 2024, our Board of Directors approved a cash dividend, with respect to the quarter ended March 31, 2024, of $0.025 per share of Class 
A Common Stock. The dividend is payable on June 6, 2024, to Class A Common Stockholders of record as of the close of business on May 22, 2024. 
EELP will make a corresponding distribution of $0.025 per interest to holders of Class B interests on the same date of the dividend payment.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the consolidated 
financial statements and notes thereto included in this Form 10-Q and included in the 2023 Annual Report. This discussion contains forward-looking 
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed below. Factors that could cause or 
contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those identified below and those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” included in the 
2023 Annual Report, this Form 10-Q and our other filings with the SEC. Please also see the section titled “Forward-Looking Statements.”

Overview

Excelerate is changing the way the world accesses cleaner and more reliable energy by delivering regasified natural gas, which benefits hundreds 
of millions of people around the world. From our founding, we have focused on providing flexible liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) solutions to markets in 
diverse environments across the globe, providing a lesser emitting form of energy to markets that often rely on coal as their primary energy source. At 
Excelerate, we believe that access to energy sources such as LNG is critical to assisting markets in their decarbonization efforts, while at the same time 
promoting economic growth and improving quality of life.

Our business spans the globe, with regional offices in 11 countries and an operational presence in Argentina, Bangladesh, Brazil, Finland, 
Germany, Pakistan, the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”), and the United States. We are the largest provider of regasified LNG capacity in Argentina, 
Bangladesh, Finland and the UAE, one of the largest providers of regasified LNG capacity in Brazil and Pakistan, and we operate the largest floating 
storage and regasification unit (“FSRU”) in Brazil. We intend to continue marketing natural gas and LNG, both of which offer a cleaner energy source 
from which power can be generated consistently, in the markets where we operate. The high value our customers place on our services has resulted in a 
reliable source of revenues to us. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, we generated revenues of $200.1 million, net income of $28.1 million and 
Adjusted EBITDA of $75.4 million. For the three months ended March 31, 2023, we generated revenues of $211.1 million, net income of $30.7 million and 
Adjusted EBITDA of $79.9 million. For more information regarding our non-GAAP measure Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation to net income, the most 
comparable U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) measure, see “How We Evaluate Our Operations.”

Our business focuses on the integration of the natural gas-to-power LNG value chain, and as part of this value chain, we operate regasification 
terminals in global economies that utilize our FSRU fleet. Our business is substantially supported by time charter and terminal use contracts, which are 
effectively long-term, take-or-pay arrangements and provide consistent revenue and cash flow from our high-quality customer base. As of March 31, 
2024, we operate a fleet of ten purpose-built FSRUs, have completed more than 2,700 ship-to-ship transfers of LNG with over 50 LNG operators since 
we began operations and have safely delivered more than 6,700 billion cubic feet of natural gas through 16 LNG regasification terminals. For the three 
months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, we generated revenues of $157.0 million and $118.6 million, respectively, from our FSRU and terminal services 
businesses, representing approximately 78% and 56% of our total revenues for each of those periods.

We also procure LNG from major producers and sell natural gas through our flexible LNG terminals. For the three months ended March 31, 2024 
and 2023 we generated revenues of $43.1 million and $92.5 million, respectively, from LNG and natural gas sales, representing approximately 22% and 
44% of our total revenues for each of those periods. We believe that the commercial momentum that we have established in recent years and the 
increasing need for access to LNG around the world, have resulted in a significant portfolio of new growth opportunities for us to pursue. In addition to our 
FSRU and terminal services businesses and LNG and natural gas sales, we plan to expand our business through investments in organic and inorganic 
commercial opportunities. We are evaluating and pursuing early-stage projects with opportunities in South Asia, Asia Pacific, Latin America, Europe, and 
the Middle East.

Recent Trends and Outlook

Natural gas and LNG prices decreased during the first quarter of 2024 relative to the fourth quarter of 2023. Dutch Title Transfer Facility (“TTF”) 
and Japan Korea Marker (“JKM”) average first quarter pricing ($8.65/million British thermal units (“MMBtu”) and $11.90/MMBtu, respectively) decreased 
compared to the fourth quarter of 2023 ($13.58/MMBtu and $15.75/MMBtu, respectively). Lower demand in both Europe and northern Asia prevented 
price escalation during the first quarter of 2024. European natural gas storage ended the 2023-2024 winter season at about 61% of capacity. Injection 
season is already underway with a goal to have natural gas storage levels at 90% of capacity by October 1, 2024. Geopolitical risk premiums remained 
high in the first quarter of 2024 due to the continuation of the Israel-Hamas war, but structurally-balanced LNG markets and warmer than normal winter 
months prevented prices from escalating. Most recently, energy markets have shown a muted response to the Iran-Israel conflict, despite the threat it 
poses to global energy balances.

Relatively low and steady LNG spot prices in 2023 and through the first quarter of 2024 have benefited LNG consumers, allowing buyers in Asia to 
continue purchasing spot cargoes. Unless pricing significantly increases above recent levels, we expect to see continued interest from the markets we 
serve, such as Bangladesh and, during their winter season, Argentina. China’s LNG imports recovered significantly in response to lowered spot market 
prices, increased term volumes, and increased gas-fired generation pushing up overall 
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gas demand through 2023. This trend continued into the first quarter of 2024 as LNG imports increased by three million tonnes (“MT”) to 19 MT during 
first quarter of 2024 compared to 16 MT during the first quarter of 2023.

Brazil also experienced an increase in LNG imports. The effects of an intense and prolonged El Niño event prompted higher-than-normal summer 
temperatures, which, coupled with maintenance outages of Brazil’s offshore natural gas production, led to increased LNG imports. Our 10-year charter 
with Petrobras for Sequoia is another example of our infrastructure providing not only energy security, but also reliability.

In January 2024, the Biden Administration announced a temporary pause on pending decisions of new LNG export authorizations to non-Free 
Trade Agreement (“non-FTA”) countries. During the energy industry’s CERAWeek conference in March 2024, Secretary Jennifer Granholm of the 
Department of Energy assured attendees that by the next CERAWeek in March 2025 the pause on LNG export project approvals imposed by the Biden 
Administration would be lifted. There are approximately 16 liquefaction projects with approximately 156 MTPA of LNG capacity pending final investment 
decision (“FID”) that are facing regulatory delays. It is likely that a majority of the export projects would not reach FID until next year. Our agreement to 
purchase up to 0.7 MTPA of LNG from Venture Global’s Plaquemines Phase 2 LNG facility is not affected by the temporary pause. Together with our 
additional LNG purchase commitments from QatarEnergy, we expect that our portfolio will give us the opportunity to assist both new and existing 
customers in better managing the typical uncertainties of local demand, while capturing potential arbitrage opportunities ourselves.
 
Components of Our Results of Operations

Revenue

We generate revenue through the provision of regasification services using our fleet of FSRUs and LNG terminal assets, as well as physical sales 
of LNG and natural gas, that are made primarily in connection with our regasification and terminal projects. We provide regasification services through 
time charters and operation service contracts primarily related to our long-term charter and terminal use contracts. Most of our time charter revenues are 
from long-term contracts that function similarly to take-or-pay arrangements in that we are paid if our assets and teams are available and ready to provide 
services to our customers regardless of whether our customers utilize the services. We generally charge fixed fees for the use of and services provided 
with our vessels and terminal capacity plus additional amounts for certain variable costs. 

Expenses

The principal expenses involved in conducting our business are operating costs, direct cost of gas sales, general and administrative expenses, 
and depreciation and amortization. A large portion of the fixed and variable costs we incur in our business are in the operation of our fleet of FSRUs and 
terminals that provide regasification and gas supply to our customers. We manage the level of our fixed costs based on several factors, including industry 
conditions and expected demand for our services and generally pass-through certain variable costs.

We incur significant equipment costs in connection with the operation of our business, including capital equipment recorded as property and 
equipment, net on our balance sheets and related depreciation and amortization on our income statement. In addition, we incur repair and maintenance 
and leasing costs related to our property and equipment utilized both in our FSRU and terminal services and gas sales. Property and equipment and 
other assets include costs incurred for our fleet of FSRUs and terminal assets, including capitalized costs related to drydocking activities. Generally, we 
are required to drydock each of our vessels every five years, but vessels older than 15 years of age require a shorter duration drydocking or in-place 
bottom survey every two and a half years.

Cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses

Cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses include the following major cost categories: vessel operating costs; personnel costs; repair and 
maintenance; and leasing costs. These operating costs are incurred for both our FSRU and terminal services revenues and gas sales revenues.

Direct cost of gas sales

Direct cost of gas sales includes the cost of LNG and other fuel and direct costs incurred in selling natural gas and LNG, which are significant 
variable operating costs. These costs fluctuate in proportion to the amount of our natural gas and LNG sales as well as LNG prices.

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of our property and equipment assets, less an 
estimated salvage value. Certain recurring repairs and maintenance expenditures required by regulators are amortized over the required maintenance 
period.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) consist primarily of compensation and other employee-related costs for personnel engaged 
in executive management, sales, finance, legal, tax and human resources. SG&A also consists of expenses associated with office facilities, information 
technology, external professional services, business development, legal costs and other administrative expenses.

Other income, net

Other income, net, primarily contains interest income, gains or losses from the effect of foreign exchange rates and gains and losses on asset 
sales.

Interest expense and Interest expense – related party

Our interest expense is primarily associated with our finance leases liabilities and loan agreements with external banks and related parties.

Earnings from equity-method investment

Earnings from equity-method investment relate to our 45% ownership interest in the joint venture with Nakilat Excelerate LLC, which we acquired 
in 2018.

Provision for income taxes

Excelerate is a corporation for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes. Excelerate’s accounting predecessor, Excelerate Energy Limited 
Partnership (“EELP”), is treated as a pass-through entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, as such, has generally not been subject to U.S. 
federal income tax at the entity level. Instead, EELP’s U.S. income is allocated to its Class A and Class B partners proportionate to their interest. In 
addition, EELP has international operations that are subject to foreign income tax and U.S. corporate subsidiaries subject to U.S. federal tax. These taxes 
are also included in our provision for income taxes.

Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest

Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests includes earnings allocable to our shares of Class B Common Stock as well as earnings 
allocable to the third-party equity ownership interests in our subsidiaries, Excelerate Energy Bangladesh, LLC and Excelerate Albania Holding Sh.p.k.

Factors Affecting the Comparability of Our Results of Operations 

As a result of a number of factors, our historical results of operations may not be comparable from period to period or going forward. Set forth 
below is a brief discussion of the key factors impacting the comparability of our results of operations.

Depreciation Expense

During the fourth quarter of 2023, we performed a review of the estimated useful lives of our FSRU vessels. As a relatively new asset class, being 
first built in 2005, we initially estimated a useful life of 30 years with no salvage value. As the vessels approach almost 20 years of life, there has been 
improved visibility into the expected term of FSRU productive capabilities, demand, and salvage potential. As a result, we changed the useful lives of our 
FSRU vessel assets to 40 years and added an estimated salvage value. 

How We Evaluate Our Operations

We operate in a single reportable segment. However, we use a variety of qualitative, operational and financial metrics to assess our performance 
and valuation. Among other measures, management considers each of the following in assessing our business:

Adjusted Gross Margin;

Adjusted EBITDA; and

Capital Expenditures.

Adjusted Gross Margin

We use Adjusted Gross Margin, a non-GAAP financial measure, which we define as revenues less direct cost of sales and operating expenses, 
excluding depreciation and amortization, to measure our operational financial performance. Management believes Adjusted Gross Margin is useful 
because it provides insight on profitability and true operating performance excluding the implications of the historical cost basis of our assets. Our 
computation of Adjusted Gross Margin may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies, and you are cautioned not to place 
undue reliance on this information. 

29



 

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure included as a supplemental disclosure because we believe it is a useful indicator of our 
operating performance. We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, accretion, non-
cash long-term incentive compensation expense and items such as charges and non-recurring expenses that management does not consider as part of 
assessing ongoing operating performance.

We adjust net income for the items listed above to arrive at Adjusted EBITDA because these amounts can vary substantially from company to 
company within our industry depending upon accounting methods and book values of assets, capital structures and the method by which the assets were 
acquired. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to, or more meaningful than, net income as determined in accordance with GAAP 
or as an indicator of our operating performance or liquidity. This measure has limitations as certain excluded items are significant components in 
understanding and assessing a company’s financial performance, such as a company’s cost of capital and tax structure, as well as the historic costs of 
depreciable assets, none of which are components of Adjusted EBITDA. Our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed as an inference 
that our results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Our computations of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly 
titled measures of other companies. For the foregoing reasons, Adjusted EBITDA has significant limitations that affect its use as an indicator of our 
profitability and valuation, and you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on this information.

Capital Expenditures

We incur capital expenditures as part of our regular business operations. Capital expenditures are costs incurred to expand our business 
operations, increase the efficiency of business operations, extend the life of an existing asset, improve an asset’s capabilities, increase the future service 
of an asset, repair existing assets in order to maintain their service capability, and provide the upkeep required for regulatory compliance. Costs related to 
prospective projects are capitalized once it is determined to be probable that the related assets will be constructed.

The tables below reconcile the financial measures discussed above to the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in 
accordance with GAAP:

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  

 (In thousands)  
FSRU and terminal services revenues $ 156,994   $ 118,577  
Gas sales revenues  43,119    92,479  
Cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses  (70,613 )   (58,792 )
Direct cost of gas sales  (39,879 )   (55,185 )
Depreciation and amortization expense  (22,910 )   (25,193 )
Gross Margin $ 66,711   $ 71,886  
Depreciation and amortization expense  22,910    25,193  
Adjusted Gross Margin $ 89,621   $ 97,079  

 
 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023  
 (In thousands)  
Net income $ 28,140   $ 30,739  
Interest expense  15,606    15,547  
Provision for income taxes  6,901   7,603 
Depreciation and amortization expense  22,910    25,193  
Accretion expense

 
455

 
 

 
436

 
Long-term incentive compensation expense  1,377   357  
Adjusted EBITDA $ 75,389   $ 79,875  
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Consolidated Results of Operations 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2023

 For the three months ended March 31,  

 2024   2023   Change  
 (In thousands)  

Revenues         
FSRU and terminal services $ 156,994   $ 118,577   $ 38,417  
Gas sales  43,119    92,479    (49,360 )

Total revenues  200,113    211,056    (10,943 )
Operating expenses         

Cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses (exclusive of items below)  70,613    58,792    11,821  
Direct cost of gas sales  39,879    55,185    (15,306 )
Depreciation and amortization  22,910    25,193    (2,283 )
Selling, general and administrative  

21,552
   

22,317
   

(765
)

Total operating expenses  154,954    161,487    (6,533 )
Operating income  45,159    49,569    (4,410 )

Other income (expense)         
Interest expense  (12,146 )   (11,955 )   (191 )
Interest expense – related party  (3,460 )   (3,592 )   132  
Earnings from equity method investments  531    416    115  
Other income, net  4,957   3,904   1,053 

Income before income taxes  35,041    38,342    (3,301 )
Provision for income taxes  (6,901 )   (7,603 )   702  

Net income  28,140    30,739    (2,599 )
Less net income attributable to non-controlling interests  21,816    23,895    (2,079 )

Net income attributable to shareholders $ 6,324  $ 6,844  $ (520 )
Additional financial data:         
Gross Margin $ 66,711   $ 71,886   $ (5,175 )
Adjusted Gross Margin  89,621    97,079    (7,458 )
Adjusted EBITDA  75,389    79,875    (4,486 )
Capital expenditures  12,769    14,929    (2,160 )

Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2023

Net income

Net income was $28.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $2.6 million, as compared to $30.7 million for the three 
months ended March 31, 2023. Net income was lower primarily due to the drydocking of Summit LNG and Excellence, our two vessels accounted for as 
sales-type leases ($18.4 million), the transition of Sequoia to a TCP agreement in the first quarter of 2024 ($4.1 million), and a decrease in other gas 
sales opportunities ($3.9 million), partially offset by a full quarter of our charter with Germany ($8.1 million), a decrease in depreciation and amortization, 
primarily as a result of the update to our useful life assumption in the fourth quarter of 2023 ($5.9 million), various charter rate increases ($5.4 million), the 
benefit of the Sequoia acquisition ($3.6 million), and an increase in interest income ($2.3 million).

Gross Margin and Adjusted Gross Margin

Gross Margin was $66.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $5.2 million, as compared to $71.9 million for the three 
months ended March 31, 2023. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, Adjusted Gross Margin was $89.6 million, a decrease of $7.5 million, as 
compared to $97.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. Gross Margin and Adjusted Gross Margin were lower primarily due to the 
drydocking of Summit LNG and Excellence, our two vessels accounted for as sales-type leases ($18.4 million), the transition of Sequoia to a TCP 
agreement in the first quarter of 2024 ($4.4 million), and a decrease in other gas sales opportunities ($3.9 million), partially offset by a full quarter of our 
charter with Germany ($8.1 million), lower operating lease expense due to the acquisition of Sequoia ($6.0 million), and various charter rate increases 
($5.4 million). Gross Margin also decreased due to higher depreciation and amortization as a result of acquiring Sequoia ($2.4 million), partially offset by 
the update to our useful life assumption in the fourth quarter of 2023 ($5.9 million).
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Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA was $75.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $4.5 million, as compared to $79.9 million for the 
three months ended March 31, 2023. Adjusted EBITDA was lower primarily due to the drydocking of Summit LNG and Excellence, our two vessels 
accounted for as sales-type leases ($18.4 million), the transition of Sequoia to a TCP agreement in the first quarter of 2024 ($4.1 million), and a decrease 
in other gas sales opportunities ($3.9 million), partially offset by a full quarter of our charter with Germany ($8.1 million), lower operating lease expense 
due to the acquisition of Sequoia ($6.0 million), various charter rate increases ($5.4 million), and an increase in interest income ($2.3 million).

For more information regarding our non-GAAP measures Adjusted Gross Margin and Adjusted EBITDA, and a reconciliation to their most 
comparable GAAP measures, see “—How We Evaluate Our Operations.”

FSRU and terminal services revenues

FSRU and terminal services revenues were $157.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $38.4 million as compared 
to $118.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. FSRU and terminal services revenues were higher primarily due to beginning our TCP 
agreement in Brazil in the first quarter of 2024, and a full quarter of our charter with Germany.

Gas sales revenues

Gas sales revenues were $43.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $49.4 million, as compared to $92.5 million for 
the three months ended March 31, 2023. The decrease was primarily due to higher natural gas sales volumes and prices during the three months ended 
March 31, 2023 related to our terminal operations in Brazil and gas sales activity in Finland, partially offset by LNG sales in Bangladesh during the three 
months ended March 31, 2024.

Cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses

Cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses was $70.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $11.8 million, as 
compared to $58.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. The increase in cost of revenue and vessel operating expenses was primarily due 
to drydock costs on Summit LNG and increased personnel costs in Argentina, partially offset by lower operating lease expense due to the acquisition of 
Sequoia, and lower expenses in Brazil as a result of transitioning to a TCP agreement in the first quarter of 2024.

Direct cost of gas sales

Direct cost of gas sales was $39.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $15.3 million, as compared to $55.2 million 
for the three months ended March 31, 2023. The decrease was primarily due to higher natural gas sales volumes and prices during the three months 
ended March 31, 2023 related to our terminal operations in Brazil and gas sales activity in Finland which commenced in the fourth quarter of 2022, 
partially offset by LNG sales in Bangladesh during the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses were $22.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $2.3 million, as compared 
to $25.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. Depreciation and amortization decreased primarily due to the update to our useful life 
assumptions, partially offset by increases from the acquisition of Sequoia in the second quarter of 2023.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $21.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $0.7 million, as 
compared to $22.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. Selling, general and administrative expenses were essentially flat for the three 
months ended March 31, 2024 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023.

Interest expense

Interest expense was $12.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $0.1 million, as compared to $12.0 million for the 
three months ended March 31, 2023. Interest expense increased due to our entering into the Term Loan (as defined herein) in the second quarter of 
2023, partially offset by accelerated amortization of deferred issuance costs related to the Amended Credit Agreement (as defined herein) recognized in 
the three months ended March 31, 2023. 

Interest expense – related party

Interest expense – related party was $3.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $0.1 million, as compared to $3.6 
million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. Interest expense – related party for the three months ended March 31, 2024 was essentially flat as 
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023.
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Other income, net

Other income, net was $5.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $1.1 million as compared to $3.9 million for the 
three months ended March 31, 2023. The increase was primarily due to higher interest income received on cash balances invested in money market 
funds, partially offset by higher foreign currency exchange losses related to our operations in Brazil.

Provision for income taxes 

The provision for income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, was $6.9 million and $7.6 million, respectively. The 
decrease was primarily attributable to the year-over-year change in the amount and geographical distribution of income.

The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, was 19.7% and 19.8%, respectively. The decrease was primarily 
driven by the geographical distribution of income and the varying tax regimes of jurisdictions.

Excelerate is a corporation for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes. Excelerate’s accounting predecessor, EELP, is treated as a pass-
through entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, as such, has generally not been subject to U.S. federal income tax at the entity level.

The Company has international operations that are also subject to foreign income tax and U.S. corporate subsidiaries subject to U.S. federal tax. 
Therefore, its effective income tax rate is dependent on many factors, including the Company’s geographical distribution of income, a rate benefit 
attributable to the portion of the Company’s earnings not subject to corporate level taxes, and the impact of nondeductible items and foreign exchange 
impacts as well as varying tax regimes of jurisdictions. In one jurisdiction, the Company’s tax rate is significantly less than the applicable statutory rate as 
a result of a tax holiday that was granted. This tax holiday will expire in 2033 at the same time that our contract and revenue with our customer ends.

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest was $21.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $2.1 million, as 
compared to $23.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. The decrease in net income attributable to non-controlling interest was primarily 
due to lower net income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Based on our cash positions, cash flows from operating activities and borrowing capacity on our debt facilities, we believe we will have sufficient 
liquidity for the next 12 months for ongoing operations, planned capital expenditures, other investments, debt service obligations, payment of tax 
distributions and our announced and expected quarterly dividends and distributions, as described in our Dividend and Distribution Policy in the 2023 
Annual Report. For more information regarding our planned dividend payments, see Note 11 – Equity. As of March 31, 2024, we had $578.9 million in 
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.

At times, we import and sell natural gas and LNG into the countries in which we operate. Some of the inventory purchases that we make to fulfill 
these sales could potentially exceed cash on hand. We plan to fund any cash shortfalls with borrowings under the EE Revolver (as defined herein). 
Management believes the EE Revolver will provide sufficient liquidity to execute our contractual purchase obligations. In the event sufficient funds were 
not available under the EE Revolver, we would seek alternative funding sources.

We have historically funded our business, including meeting our day-to-day operational requirements, repaying our indebtedness and funding 
capital expenditures, through debt financing, capital contributions and our operating cash flows as discussed below. We expect that our future principal 
uses of cash will also include additional capital expenditures to fund our growth strategy, pay income taxes and make distributions from EELP to fund 
income taxes, fund our obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement (“TRA”), and pay cash dividends and distributions. Any determination to pay 
dividends to holders of our common stock and distributions to holders of EELP’s Class B interests will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will 
depend upon many factors, including our financial condition, results of operations, projections, liquidity, earnings, legal requirements, covenant 
compliance, restrictions in our existing and any future debt and other factors that our board of directors deems relevant. In the future we may enter into 
arrangements to grow our business or acquire or invest in complementary businesses which could decrease our cash and cash equivalents and increase 
our cash requirements. As a result of these and other factors, we could use our available capital resources sooner than expected and may be required to 
seek additional equity or debt.

Repurchase of Equity Securities

On February 22, 2024, our board of directors approved a share repurchase program to purchase up to $50.0 million of our Class A Common Stock 
(the “Program”). The Program does not obligate us to acquire any specific number of shares and will expire on February 28, 2026, and the Program may 
be suspended, extended, modified or discontinued at any time. During the three months ended March 31, 2024, the Company repurchased 588,030 
shares of its outstanding Class A Common Stock at a weighted average price of 
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$15.92 per share, for a total net cost of approximately $9.4 million. For more information, see Part II – Other Information – Item 2. Unregistered Sales of 
Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds – Share Repurchase Program.

Cash Flow Statement Highlights

Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2023

 Three months ended March 31,  
 2024   2023   Change  
Net cash provided by (used in): (In thousands)  

Operating activities $ 64,661   $ 46,797   $ 17,864  
Investing activities  (12,769 )   (14,929 )   2,160 
Financing activities  (27,733 )   (16,361 )   (11,372 )
Effect of exchange rate on cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash  35    (420 )   455  
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 24,194   $ 15,087   $ 9,107  

Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities increased by $17.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as compared to the three 
months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to:

•an $86.0 million decrease in cash flows used in settling accounts payable and accrued liabilities, primarily due to payments made the first quarter 
of 2023 for cargoes sold in the fourth quarter of 2022; and
•a $7.4 million decrease in cash flows used in settling other long-term liabilities primarily due to the acquisition of Sequoia partially offset by 
recognition of deferred revenue from the Summit LNG drydock; 
•partially offset by a $44.1 million decrease in cash received for other current assets and other assets primarily due to gas sales in Brazil and 
Finland in the first quarter of 2023;
•a $23.8 million decrease in cash received related to deferred revenues, primarily related to recognition of deferred revenues related to the Summit 
LNG drydock; and
•a $7.0 million decrease in the amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets, primarily due to the acquisition of Sequoia and the end of the 
lease of the Bahia terminal in the fourth quarter of 2023.

Investing Activities and Capital Expenditures

Cash flows used in investing activities were primarily comprised of capital expenditures made for the purchases of property and equipment, which 
decreased by $2.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as compared to the same period in 2023. The decrease was primarily due to 2023 
vessel upgrades made ahead of beginning service at the Inkoo Terminal in Finland and lower spending on construction of our Albanian power barges, 
partially offset by upgrades on Excelsior.

Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities increased by $11.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as compared to the three months 
ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to $8.4 million in cash paid under our Class A Common Stock share repurchase program, a $5.0 million increase in 
repayments on long-term debt and a $2.7 million increase in distributions to shareholders, partially offset by $4.6 million in cash paid for debt issuance 
costs incurred in 2023.

Debt Facilities

Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan Facility

On April 18, 2022, EELP entered into a senior secured revolving credit agreement, by and among EELP, as borrower, Excelerate, as parent, the 
lenders party thereto, the issuing banks party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, pursuant to which the lenders and 
issuing banks thereunder made available a revolving credit facility (the “EE Revolver”), including a letter of credit sub-facility, to EELP. The EE Revolver 
enabled us to borrow up to $350.0 million over a three-year term originally set to expire in April 2025.

On March 17, 2023, EELP entered into an amended and restated senior secured credit agreement (“Amended Credit Agreement”), by and among 
EELP, as borrower, Excelerate, as parent, the lenders party thereto, the issuing banks party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent. 
Under the Amended Credit Agreement, EELP obtained a new $250.0 million term loan facility (the “Term Loan Facility” and, together with the EE 
Revolver, as amended by the Amended Credit Agreement, the “EE Facilities”). The EE Facilities mature in March 2027. In April 2023, Excelerate 
purchased Sequoia for $265.0 million using $250.0 million borrowed through our Term Loan Facility together with cash on hand. 
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Borrowings under the EE Facilities bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the term SOFR reference rate for such period plus an applicable 
margin, which applicable margin is based on EELP’s consolidated total leverage ratio as defined and calculated under the Amended Credit Agreement 
and can range from 2.75% to 3.50%. The unused portion of the EE Revolver commitments is subject to an unused commitment fee calculated at a rate 
per annum ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% based on EELP's consolidated total leverage ratio.

In December 2023, we paid off $55.2 million of the principal outstanding on our Term Loan Facility. We also terminated the same notional value of 
the interest rate swaps we had previously entered into to hedge the fluctuations in the SOFR rates associated with the variable interest rate on the loan.

As of March 31, 2024, the Company had issued $40.0 million in letters of credit under the EE Revolver. As a result of the EE Revolver’s financial 
ratio covenants and after taking into account the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, all of the $310.0 million of undrawn capacity was 
available for additional borrowings as of March 31, 2024.

As of March 31, 2024, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under its debt facilities.

Other Contractual Obligations

Operating Leases

We lease a terminal and offices in various locations under noncancelable operating leases. As of December 31, 2023, we had future minimum 
lease payments totaling $7.3 million. As of March 31, 2024, we had future minimum lease payments totaling $7.2 million and are committed to $1.6 
million in year one, $3.2 million for years two and three, $1.9 million for years four and five and $0.4 million thereafter.

Finance Leases

Certain enforceable vessel charters and pipeline capacity agreements are classified as finance leases, and the right-of-use assets are included in 
property and equipment. As of December 31, 2023, we had future minimum lease payments totaling $274.1 million. As of March 31, 2024, we had future 
minimum lease payments totaling $265.4 million and are committed to $24.9 million in payments in year one, $66.5 million for years two and three, $60.8 
million for years four and five and $113.2 million thereafter.

Newbuild Agreement Commitments

In October 2022, we signed a binding shipbuilding contract (“the Newbuild Agreement”) with HD Hyundai Heavy Industries for a new FSRU to be 
delivered in 2026. As part of the Newbuild Agreement, we currently expect to pay approximately $330.0 million, subject to adjustment. Related payments 
are due in five installments with the final installment due concurrently with the delivery of the vessel, which is expected in 2026. During the year ended 
December 31, 2022, we made the first installment payment of approximately $30.0 million. Our future payment commitments related to the Newbuild 
Agreement are expected to be approximately $50.0 million in 2024 and $250.0 million in 2025-2026.

Tax Receivable Agreement

In April 2022, we entered into the TRA with Excelerate Energy Holdings, LLC and the George Kaiser Family Foundation (together, the “TRA 
Beneficiaries”). The TRA will provide for payment by us to the TRA Beneficiaries of 85% of the amount of the net cash tax savings, if any, that we are 
deemed to realize as a result of our utilization of certain tax benefits resulting from (i) certain increases in the tax basis of assets of EELP and its 
subsidiaries resulting from exchanges of EELP partnership interests in the future, (ii) certain tax attributes of EELP and subsidiaries of EELP (including 
the existing tax basis of assets owned by EELP or its subsidiaries and the tax basis of certain assets purchased from the Foundation) that exist as of the 
time of the IPO or may exist at the time when Class B interests of EELP are exchanged for shares of Class A Common Stock, and (iii) certain other tax 
benefits related to us entering into the TRA, including tax benefits attributable to payments that we make under the TRA.

Venture Global SPA

In February 2023, we executed a 20-year LNG sale and purchase agreement with Venture Global LNG (the “Venture Global SPA”). Under the 
Venture Global SPA, we will purchase 0.7 MTPA of LNG on a free-on-board basis from the Plaquemines Phase 2 LNG facility in Plaquemines Parish, 
Louisiana. Our purchase commitment will be based on the final settlement price of monthly Henry Hub natural gas futures contracts plus a contractual 
spread. The start of this commitment, however, is dependent on the LNG facility becoming operational, which is not expected in the next 12 months.

QatarEnergy SPA

In January 2024, we executed a 15-year SPA with QatarEnergy (the “QatarEnergy SPA”). Under the QatarEnergy SPA, we have agreed to 
purchase LNG from QatarEnergy beginning in 2026. QatarEnergy will deliver 0.85 MTPA of LNG in 2026 and 2027 and 1.0 MTPA from 2028 to 2040. 
Our purchase commitment will be based on a three-month average of Brent Crude prices for the months 
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immediately preceding each delivery, times a fixed percentage. These LNG volumes are intended to be used to supply sales under the Petrobangla SPA.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires significant judgments from management in estimating 
matters for financial reporting that are inherently uncertain. For additional information about our accounting policies and estimates, see “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” in the 2023 Annual Report and 
the notes to the audited financial statements included therein.

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates as compared to the critical accounting policies and 
estimates described in the 2023 Annual Report.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2 – Summary of significant accounting policies, to the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this 
Form 10-Q for information regarding recently issued accounting pronouncements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In our normal course of business, we are exposed to certain market risks, including changes in interest rates, natural gas and LNG commodity 
prices and foreign currency exchange rates. In order to manage these risks, we may utilize derivative instruments. Gains or losses on those derivative 
instruments would typically be offset by corresponding gains or losses on the hedged item.

Interest Rate Risk

We have entered into long-term interest rate swap agreements in order to hedge a portion of our exposure to changes in interest rates associated 
with our external bank loans. We are exposed to changes in interest rates on our other debt facilities as well as the portion of our external bank loans that 
remain unhedged. We may enter into additional derivative instruments to manage our exposure to interest rates.

As of March 31, 2024, the fair value of our interest rate swaps was $4.4 million, compared to $1.4 million as of December 31, 2023. Based on our 
hedged notional amount as of March 31, 2024, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase or decrease in the three-month and six-month SOFR forward 
curves would change the estimated fair value of our existing interest rate swaps by $6.3 million.

Commodity Price Risk

In the course of our operations, we are exposed to commodity price risk, primarily through our purchases of or commitments to purchase LNG. To 
reduce our exposure, we may enter into derivative instruments to offset some or all of the associated price risk. We did not hold any commodity derivative 
instruments as of March 31, 2024 or 2023.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. We have one foreign subsidiary that utilizes the euro as its functional currency. Gains or losses due to 
transactions in foreign currencies are included in Other income (expense), net in our consolidated statements of income. Due to a portion of our expenses 
being incurred in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, our expenses may, from time to time, increase relative to our revenues as a result of fluctuations 
in exchange rates, particularly between the U.S. dollar and the euro, Argentine peso, Brazilian real and the Bangladesh taka. During the three months 
ended March 31, 2024, we utilized an immaterial amount of financial derivatives to hedge some of our currency exposure. For the three months ended 
March 31, 2024 and 2023, we recorded $(1.4) million and $(0.4) million, respectively, in foreign currency gains/(losses) in our consolidated statements of 
income.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company's disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the 
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's 
rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2023. Based 
upon their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) were effective as of March 31, 2024.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended March 31, 2024 that have materially 
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Disclosure concerning legal proceedings is incorporated by reference to Part I. Item 1. Financial Information—Note 19 – Commitments and 
contingencies in this Quarterly Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have been no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in “Risk Factors” included in the 2023 Annual Report, except as 
disclosed below:

We cannot assure you that we will pay dividends on our Class A Common Stock or that we will repurchase our common stock pursuant 
to the Program, and our indebtedness could limit our ability to pay future dividends on our Class A Common Stock.

We declared and paid cash dividends on our Class A Common Stock in the prior fiscal year. Any determination to pay dividends to holders of our 
Class A Common Stock in the future will be subject to applicable law, the terms of any applicable governing documents and agreements and at the 
discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon many factors, including our financial condition, results of operations, projections, liquidity, 
earnings, legal requirements, covenant compliance, restrictions in our existing and any future debt agreements and other factors that our board of 
directors deems relevant. Our financing arrangements, including the Amended Credit Agreement, place certain direct and indirect restrictions on our 
ability to pay cash dividends. Therefore, there can be no assurance that we will pay any dividends to holders of our Class A Common Stock or as to the 
amount of any such dividends, and we may cease such payments at any time in the future. In addition, our historical results of operations, including cash 
flow, are not indicative of future financial performance, and our actual results of operations could differ significantly from our historical results of 
operations. We have not adopted, and do not currently expect to adopt, a separate written dividend policy.

Furthermore, although our board of directors has authorized the Program, the timing, manner, price and amount of any common stock 
repurchases will be determined by management in its discretion and will depend on a variety of factors, including legal requirements, price and economic 
and market conditions. We are not obligated to make any purchases under the program, and we may discontinue it at any time. Additionally, our 
operations are conducted through our wholly owned subsidiaries and our ability to generate cash to meet our debt service obligations or to make future 
dividend payments or conduct share repurchases, if any, is highly dependent on the earnings of, and the receipt of funds from, our subsidiaries. In 
addition, Delaware law may impose requirements that may restrict our ability to pay dividends to holders of our common stock or our ability to repurchase 
our common stock.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Share Repurchase Program

The following table summarizes the repurchases and cancellations of our Class A Common Stock during the three months ended March 31, 2024:

Period  
Total number of shares 

purchased   
Average price paid per 

share   

Total number of shares 
purchased as part of 
publically announced 

plans or programs   

Maximum dollar value of 
shares that may yet be 
purchased under the 

Program  
           (in thousands)  

March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024   588,030   $ 15.92    588,030   $ 40,641  

(1)Shares purchased under Program announced February 22, 2024 which authorizes total purchases of up to $50.0 million and expires February 28, 2026.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

(c) Trading Plans

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, none of the Company’s directors or executive officers adopted, modified or terminated any 
contract, instruction or written plan for the purchase or sale of the Company’s securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of 
Rule 10b5-1(c) or any “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” as defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K).
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Item 6. Exhibits. 

Exhibit
Number  Description

10.1*  Form of Excelerate Energy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Award Restricted Stock Units (Directors 2024).
10.2*  Form of Excelerate Energy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Award Restricted Stock Units (Employees 2024).
10.3*  Form of Excelerate Energy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Award Performance Stock Units (Employees 2024).
10.4*  Corrective Amendment to Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement, dated as of March 17, 2023.
31.1**  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 

Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2**  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 

Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1**  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2**  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 

Act of 2002.
101.INS  Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded 

within the Inline XBRL document.
101.SCH  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104  Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)
 

* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith. This exhibit shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise 
subject to the liability of that Section. Such exhibit shall not be deemed incorporated into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. 

39



 
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 
  Excelerate Energy, Inc.
    
Date: May 9, 2024  By: /s/ Dana Armstrong
   Dana Armstrong

   
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal 
Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 10.1

EXCELERATE ENERGY, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF GRANT OF AWARD OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS 
 

Notice of Grant

 Excelerate Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby grants to the Participant named below the number of restricted stock units specified 
below (the “Award” or the “Restricted Stock Units”). Each Restricted Stock Unit represents the right to receive one share of the 
Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the conditions 
set forth in this Grant Notice, the Excelerate Energy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the Restricted Stock Unit Award 
Agreement (the “Award Agreement”) promulgated under such Plan, each as amended from time to time. This Award is granted 
pursuant to the Plan and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by the Award Agreement.

Participant Name:   

Grant Date:  

Number of Restricted Stock Units:  

 

Vesting Schedule:  
 
Provided that the Participant has not experienced a Termination of Employment from the Grant Date through such vesting date, and 
subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the Award Agreement, all of the Restricted Stock Units shall become vested on 
the earlier of (1) the first anniversary of the Grant Date, or (2) the date of the next annual meeting of the Company’s shareholders.

Agreements
 
By your signature and the Company’s signature below, you and the Company agree that this Award is granted under and governed 
by the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Capitalized 
terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Plan or the Award Agreement, as the case may be.
 
You further acknowledge that your rights to any Restricted Stock Units will be earned and become vested only as you provide 
services to the Company over time, that the grant of this Award is not consideration for service you rendered to the Company prior to 
the Grant Date, and that nothing herein or in the attached documents confers upon you any right to continue your employment or 
other service relationship with the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any period of time, nor does it interfere in any way with 
your right or the Company’s (or any Affiliate’s or Subsidiary’s) right to terminate that relationship at any time, for any reason or no 
reason, with or without Cause, and with or without advance notice, except as may be required by the terms of any employment or 
service agreement, offer letter, severance agreement, or any other agreement between the Participant and the Company or any 
Affiliate or Subsidiary (such agreement, a “Separate Agreement”) or in compliance with governing public law. 
 
 
 
 



 

“COMPANY”
 
Excelerate Energy, Inc. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________
Name: 
Title: 

“PARTICIPANT”
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________
Name 
 
 
 
_____________________________________
Signature
 
 
_____________________________________
Address
 
 
_____________________________________
Address
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EXCELERATE ENERGY, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
 

This Award Agreement is made and entered into by and between Excelerate Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Company”), and 
the Participant identified in the Notice of Grant of Award of Restricted Stock Units (“Grant Notice”) which is attached hereto (the 
“Participant”).

1. Grant of Restricted Stock Units. The Company hereby grants to the Participant named in the Grant Notice an award of 
Restricted Stock Units, subject to all of the terms and conditions in this Award Agreement and the Plan, which are incorporated 
herein by reference. Restricted Stock Units issued pursuant to a Grant Notice and this Award Agreement are referred to in this 
Agreement as “Restricted Stock Units” or “RSUs.” Each Restricted Stock Unit represents the right to receive payment in the form of 
one share of the Company’s Common Stock (each, a “Share” and collectively, the “Shares”). Prior to actual payment of a Share on 
any vested Restricted Stock Unit, such Restricted Stock Unit will represent an unsecured obligation of the Company, for which there 
is no trust and no obligation other than to issue Shares as contemplated by this Award Agreement and the Plan. 

2. Settlement of Restricted Stock Units. 

(a) No Deferral Election. With respect to any Vested RSUs (as defined below) that are not subject to a Deferral Election (as 
defined below), such RSUs shall be settled as soon as practicable following, and in all events within sixty (60) days following, the 
date such RSUs vest.

(b) Deferral Election. With respect to any Vested RSUs (as defined below) that are subject to a validly made election to 
defer the settlement thereof on a form provided by the Company (a “Deferral Election”), such RSUs shall be settled or commence to 
be settled upon the designated payment date set forth in the Deferral Election, or, if earlier, as set forth in Section 4 below.

3. Vesting of Award. The Award shall not be vested as of the Grant Date set forth in the Grant Notice and shall be 
forfeitable unless and until otherwise vested pursuant to the terms of the Grant Notice and this Award Agreement. After the Grant 
Date, subject to termination or acceleration as provided in this Award Agreement or any Separate Agreement, the Award shall 
become vested as described in the Grant Notice with respect to that number of Restricted Stock Units as set forth in the Grant 
Notice. Restricted Stock Units that have vested and are no longer subject to forfeiture are referred to herein as “Vested RSUs.” 
Restricted Stock Units awarded hereunder that are not vested and remain subject to forfeiture are referred to herein as “Unvested 
RSUs.” 

 
4. Accelerated Vesting; Forfeiture. Except as set forth in this Section 4, upon the Participant’s Termination of 

Employment, any then Unvested RSUs held by the Participant shall be forfeited and canceled as of the date of such termination.

(a) Death; Disability. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is by reason of death or Disability, any Unvested RSUs 
shall accelerate and vest in full effective as of the date of such Termination of Employment.

(b) Change in Control. Subject to the Participant’s continued service through the date of a Change in Control, all Unvested 
RSUs shall accelerate and immediately become fully vested effective as of immediately prior to the consummation of such Change 
in Control. Such RSUs shall be settled as soon as practicable following, and in all events within sixty (60) days following the date of 
such Change in Control.
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(c) Cause Termination. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is as a result of a termination by the Company for 
Cause, all outstanding Restricted Stock Units that have not yet been settled, whether Vested or Unvested, shall be immediately 
forfeited and canceled as of the date of such termination.

5. Restrictions on Resales. The Company may impose such restrictions, conditions or limitations as it determines 
appropriate as to the timing and manner of any resales by the Participant or other subsequent transfers by the Participant of any 
Shares issued pursuant to Vested RSUs, including without limitation (a) restrictions under an insider trading policy, (b) restrictions 
designed to delay and/or coordinate the timing and manner of sales by the Participant and other holders and (c) restrictions as to the 
use of a specified brokerage firm for such resales or other transfers.

6. Rights as a Stockholder. The Participant shall not be, nor have any of the rights or privileges of, a stockholder of the 
Company in respect of any RSUs unless and until Shares settled for such RSUs shall have been issued by the Company to the 
Participant (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the 
Company). Notwithstanding the foregoing, from and after the Grant Date and until the earlier of (a) the time when the RSUs are 
settled in accordance with the terms hereof or (b) the time when the Participant’s right to receive Shares upon payment of RSUs is 
forfeited, on the date that the Company pays a cash dividend (if any) to holders of Common Stock generally, the Participant shall be 
entitled to a dividend equivalent which shall be paid in the form of a cash accrual on a bookkeeping account. Such dividend 
equivalents (if any) shall be subject to the same terms and conditions and shall be settled or forfeited and at the same time as the 
RSUs to which the dividend equivalents were credited.

7. Withholding Taxes. To the extent required by applicable federal, state, local or foreign law, the Participant shall make 
arrangements satisfactory to the Company for the satisfaction of any withholding tax obligations that arise by reason of the grant, 
vesting or settlement of the RSUs. The Company shall not be required to issue Shares or to recognize the disposition of such Shares 
until such obligations are satisfied. The Participant acknowledges that the Company shall have the right to deduct any taxes required 
to be withheld by law in connection with the settlement of Vested RSUs from any amounts payable by it to the Participant (including, 
without limitation, withholding Shares otherwise issuable under the Award or any other future cash wages). 

8. Non-Transferability of Award. The Participant understands, acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise 
provided in the Plan or as permitted by the Board, the Award may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise directly or 
indirectly encumbered or disposed of other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

9. Other Agreements Superseded. The Grant Notice, this Award Agreement, the Plan and any Separate Agreement, if 
applicable, constitute the entire understanding between the Participant and the Company regarding the Award. Any prior 
agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning the Award are superseded.

10. Limitation in Interest in Shares Subject to Restricted Stock Units. Neither the Participant (individually or as a 
member of a group) nor any beneficiary or other person claiming under or through the Participant shall have any right, title, interest, 
or privilege in or to any Shares allocated or reserved for the purpose of the Plan or subject to the Grant Notice or this Award 
Agreement except as to such Shares, if any, as shall have been issued to such person in connection with the Award. Nothing in the 
Plan, in the Grant Notice, this Award Agreement or any other instrument executed pursuant to the Plan shall confer upon the 
Participant any right to continue in the Company’s employ or service nor limit in any way the Company’s (or any Affiliate’s or 
Subsidiary’s) right to terminate the Participant’s employment or other service at any time for any reason.
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11. No Liability of Company. The Company and any Affiliate or Subsidiary which is in existence or hereafter comes into 
existence shall not be liable to the Participant or any other person as to: (a) the non-issuance or sale of Shares as to which the 
Company has been unable to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company's counsel to 
be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder; and (b) any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by 
the Participant or other person due to the receipt or settlement of any Restricted Stock Units granted hereunder.

12. General. 

(a) Governing Plan Document. The Award is subject to all the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which are 
hereby made a part of the Award, and is further subject to all interpretations, amendments, rules and regulations, which may from 
time to time be promulgated and adopted pursuant to the Plan.

(b) Governing Law. This Award Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 
State of Delaware, without regard to principles of conflicts of law.

 
(c) Electronic Delivery. By executing the Grant Notice, the Participant hereby consents to the delivery of 

information (including, without limitation, information required to be delivered to the Participant pursuant to applicable securities laws) 
regarding the Company and its Affiliates or Subsidiaries, the Plan, the Award and the Shares via Company web site or other 
electronic delivery.

 
(d) Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered under this Award Agreement shall be in writing (which 

shall include electronic transmission) and shall be deemed received (i) the business day following electronic verification of receipt if 
sent electronically, (ii) upon personal delivery to the party to whom the notice is directed, or (iii) the business day following deposit 
with a reputable overnight courier (or the second business day following deposit in the case of an international delivery). Notice shall 
be addressed to the Company at its principal executive office and to the Participant at the address that he or she most recently 
provided to the Company. The recipient may acknowledge actual receipt at a time earlier than the deemed receipt set forth herein or 
by a means other than that set forth herein.

 
(e) Successors/Assigns. This Award Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 

and their respective permitted heirs, beneficiaries, successors and assigns. 
 
(f) Severability. If one or more provisions of this Award Agreement are held to be unenforceable under applicable 

law, such provision shall be excluded from this Award Agreement, and the balance of the Award Agreement shall be interpreted as if 
such provision were so excluded and shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms. The parties agree to replace such illegal, 
void, invalid or unenforceable provision of this Award Agreement with a legal, valid and enforceable provision that will achieve, to the 
extent possible, the economic, business and other purposes of such illegal, void, invalid or unenforceable provision.

 
(g) Section 409A. This Award Agreement is intended to be interpreted and applied so that the payments and 

benefits set forth herein shall, as applicable, comply with or be exempt from the requirements of Code Section 409A, and, 
accordingly, to the maximum extent permitted, this Award Agreement shall be interpreted to the fullest extent possible to reflect and 
implement such intent. Notwithstanding anything in this Award Agreement to the contrary and to the extent the payments and 
benefits set forth herein are subject to Code Section 409A, a Termination of Employment shall not be deemed to have occurred for 
purposes of any provision of this Award Agreement unless such termination 
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is also a “separation from service” within the meaning of Code Section 409A. Notwithstanding any provision in this Award Agreement 
to the contrary, if on his or her Termination of Employment, the Participant is deemed to be a “specified employee” within the 
meaning of Code Section 409A, any payments or benefits due upon such Termination of Employment that constitute a “deferral of 
compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 409A and which do not otherwise qualify under the exemptions under Treas. 
Reg. § 1.409A-1 (including without limitation, the short-term deferral exemption and the permitted payments under Treas. Reg. § 
1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(A)), shall be delayed and paid or provided to the Participant on the earlier of a date within 10 days after the date 
that is six (6) months after the Participant’s separation from service or, if earlier, the date of the Participant’s death.

 
(h) Clawback/Recoupment. The RSUs granted under this Agreement, and any Shares issued or other payments made in respect 
thereof, shall be subject to any recoupment policy that the Company may adopt from time to time, to the extent any such policy is 
applicable to the Participant and to such compensation including, but not limited to, the Company’s Dodd-Frank Clawback policy, 
designed to comply with the requirements of Rule 10D-1 promulgated under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
and the Company’s Clawback and Forfeiture Policy, as well as any recoupment provisions required under applicable law. By 
accepting the grant of RSUs under this Agreement, the Participant acknowledges, agrees and consents to the Company’s 
application, implementation and enforcement of (a) such recoupment policies with respect to all covered compensation received or to 
be received by the Participant, to the extent applicable, and (b) any provision of applicable law relating to cancellation, recoupment, 
rescission or payback of compensation and expressly agrees that the Company may take such actions as are necessary to 
effectuate such recoupment policies (as applicable to the Participant) or applicable law without further consent or action being 
required by Participant. For purposes of the foregoing, the Participant expressly and explicitly authorizes (x) the Company to issue 
instructions, on the Participant’s behalf, to any brokerage firm and/or third party administrator engaged by the Company to hold the 
Participant’s Shares and other amounts acquired under the Plan to re-convey, transfer or otherwise return such Shares and/or other 
amounts to the Company and (y) the Company’s recovery of any covered compensation through any method of recovery that the 
Company deems appropriate, including without limitation by reducing any amount that is or may become payable to the Participant. 
The Participant further agrees to comply with any request or demand for repayment by any Subsidiary or Affiliate in order to comply 
with such policies or applicable law. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement and any Company recoupment policy conflict, the 
terms of the recoupment policy shall prevail.
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EXHIBIT 10.2

EXCELERATE ENERGY, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF GRANT OF AWARD OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

Notice of Grant 

 Excelerate Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby grants to the Participant named below the number of restricted stock units specified 
below (the “Award” or the “Restricted Stock Units”). Each Restricted Stock Unit represents the right to receive one share of the 
Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the conditions 
set forth in this Grant Notice, the Excelerate Energy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the Restricted Stock Unit Award 
Agreement (the “Award Agreement”) promulgated under such Plan, each as amended from time to time. This Award is granted 
pursuant to the Plan and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by the Award Agreement.

Participant Name:   

Grant Date:  

Vesting Commencement Date:  

Number of Restricted Stock Units:  

 

Vesting Schedule:  

Provided that the Participant has not experienced a Termination of Employment from the Grant Date through each such vesting date, 
and subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the Award Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units shall become vested as 
follows:

 

Vesting Date: Restricted Stock Units Vesting:

  

  

  

Agreements
 
By your signature and the Company’s signature below, you and the Company agree that this Award is granted under and governed 
by the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Capitalized 
terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Plan or the Award Agreement, as the case may be.
 
You further acknowledge that your rights to any Restricted Stock Units will be earned and become vested only as you provide 
services to the Company over time, that the grant of this Award is not consideration for service you rendered to the Company prior to 
the Grant Date, and that nothing herein or in the attached documents confers upon you any right to continue your employment or 
other service relationship with the 

 



 

Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any period of time, nor does it interfere in any way with your right or the Company’s (or any 
Affiliate’s or Subsidiary’s) right to terminate that relationship at any time, for any reason or no reason, with or without Cause, and with 
or without advance notice, except as may be required by the terms of any employment or service agreement, offer letter, severance 
agreement, or any other agreement between the Participant and the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary (such agreement, a 
“Separate Agreement”) or in compliance with governing public law. 

 
 
“COMPANY”
 
Excelerate Energy, Inc. 
 
 
 
_________________________________
Name: 
Title: 

“PARTICIPANT”
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________
Name 
 
 
 
__________________________________
Signature
 
 
__________________________________
Address
 
 
__________________________________
Address
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EXCELERATE ENERGY, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
 

This Award Agreement is made and entered into by and between Excelerate Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Company”), and 
the Participant identified in the Notice of Grant of Award of Restricted Stock Units (“Grant Notice”) which is attached hereto (the 
“Participant”).

1. Grant of Restricted Stock Units. The Company hereby grants to the Participant named in the Grant Notice an award of 
Restricted Stock Units, subject to all of the terms and conditions in this Award Agreement and the Plan, which are incorporated 
herein by reference. Restricted Stock Units issued pursuant to a Grant Notice and this Award Agreement are referred to in this 
Agreement as “Restricted Stock Units” or “RSUs.” 

2. Company’s Obligation to Pay; Settlement. Each Restricted Stock Unit represents the right to receive payment as soon 
as practicable following, and in all events within sixty (60) days following, the date it vests in the form of one share of the Company’s 
Common Stock (each, a “Share” and collectively, the “Shares”). The Participant will have no right to payment of any Shares on any 
Restricted Stock Units unless and until the Restricted Stock Units have vested in the manner set forth in the Grant Notice and this 
Award Agreement. Prior to actual payment of a Share on any Vested RSU (as defined below), such Restricted Stock Unit will 
represent an unsecured obligation of the Company, for which there is no trust and no obligation other than to issue Shares as 
contemplated by this Award Agreement and the Plan. 

3. Vesting of Award. The Award shall not be vested as of the Grant Date set forth in the Grant Notice and shall be 
forfeitable unless and until otherwise vested pursuant to the terms of the Grant Notice and this Award Agreement. After the Grant 
Date, subject to termination or acceleration as provided in this Award Agreement or any Separate Agreement, the Award shall 
become vested as described in the Grant Notice with respect to that number of Restricted Stock Units as set forth in the Grant 
Notice. Restricted Stock Units that have vested and are no longer subject to forfeiture are referred to herein as “Vested RSUs.” 
Restricted Stock Units awarded hereunder that are not vested and remain subject to forfeiture are referred to herein as “Unvested 
RSUs.” 

 
4. Accelerated Vesting; Forfeiture. Except as set forth in this Section 4, upon the Participant’s Termination of 

Employment, any then Unvested RSUs held by the Participant shall be forfeited and canceled as of the date of such termination.

(a) Death; Disability. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is by reason of death or Disability, any Unvested RSUs 
shall accelerate and vest in full effective as of the date of such Termination of Employment.

(b) CIC Termination. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is by the Company without Cause or by the Participant 
for Good Reason and, in either case such Termination of Employment occurs within the period commencing on the date a Change in 
Control is consummated and ending on the 24-month anniversary thereof (a “CIC Termination”), any then Unvested RSUs shall 
accelerate and vest in full effective as of the date of such Termination of Employment. As used herein, “Good Reason” has the 
meaning given to such term in the Excelerate Energy, Inc. Change in Control Severance Plan.

(c) Cause Termination. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is as a result of a termination by the Company for 
Cause, all outstanding Restricted Stock Units that have not yet been settled, whether Vested or Unvested, shall be immediately 
forfeited and canceled as of the date of such termination.
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5. Restrictions on Resales. The Company may impose such restrictions, conditions or limitations as it determines 
appropriate as to the timing and manner of any resales by the Participant or other subsequent transfers by the Participant of any 
Shares issued pursuant to Vested RSUs, including without limitation (a) restrictions under an insider trading policy, (b) restrictions 
designed to delay and/or coordinate the timing and manner of sales by the Participant and other holders and (c) restrictions as to the 
use of a specified brokerage firm for such resales or other transfers.

6. Rights as a Stockholder. The Participant shall not be, nor have any of the rights or privileges of, a stockholder of the 
Company in respect of any RSUs unless and until Shares settled for such RSUs shall have been issued by the Company to the 
Participant (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the 
Company). Notwithstanding the foregoing, from and after the Grant Date and until the earlier of (a) the time when the RSUs are 
settled in accordance with the terms hereof or (b) the time when the Participant’s right to receive Shares upon payment of RSUs is 
forfeited, on the date that the Company pays a cash dividend (if any) to holders of Common Stock generally, the Participant shall be 
entitled to a dividend equivalent which shall be paid in the form of a cash accrual on a bookkeeping account. Such dividend 
equivalents (if any) shall be subject to the same terms and conditions and shall be settled or forfeited and at the same time as the 
RSUs to which the dividend equivalents were credited.

7. Withholding Taxes. To the extent required by applicable federal, state, local or foreign law, the Participant shall make 
arrangements satisfactory to the Company for the satisfaction of any withholding tax obligations that arise by reason of the grant, 
vesting or settlement of the RSUs. The Company shall not be required to issue Shares or to recognize the disposition of such Shares 
until such obligations are satisfied. The Participant acknowledges that the Company shall have the right to deduct any taxes required 
to be withheld by law in connection with the settlement of Vested RSUs from any amounts payable by it to the Participant (including, 
without limitation, withholding Shares otherwise issuable under the Award or any other future cash wages). 

8. Non-Transferability of Award. The Participant understands, acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise 
provided in the Plan or as permitted by the Board, the Award may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise directly or 
indirectly encumbered or disposed of other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

9. Other Agreements Superseded. The Grant Notice, this Award Agreement, the Plan and any Separate Agreement, if 
applicable, constitute the entire understanding between the Participant and the Company regarding the Award. Any prior 
agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning the Award are superseded.

10. Limitation in Interest in Shares Subject to Restricted Stock Units. Neither the Participant (individually or as a 
member of a group) nor any beneficiary or other person claiming under or through the Participant shall have any right, title, interest, 
or privilege in or to any Shares allocated or reserved for the purpose of the Plan or subject to the Grant Notice or this Award 
Agreement except as to such Shares, if any, as shall have been issued to such person in connection with the Award. Nothing in the 
Plan, in the Grant Notice, this Award Agreement or any other instrument executed pursuant to the Plan shall confer upon the 
Participant any right to continue in the Company’s employ or service nor limit in any way the Company’s (or any Affiliate’s or 
Subsidiary’s) right to terminate the Participant’s employment or other service at any time for any reason.

11. No Liability of Company. The Company and any Affiliate or Subsidiary which is in existence or hereafter comes into 
existence shall not be liable to the Participant or any other person as to: (a) the non-issuance or sale of Shares as to which the 
Company has been unable to obtain from any 
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regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company's counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale 
of any Shares hereunder; and (b) any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by the Participant or other person due to the 
receipt or settlement of any Restricted Stock Units granted hereunder.

12. General. 

(a) Governing Plan Document. The Award is subject to all the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which are 
hereby made a part of the Award, and is further subject to all interpretations, amendments, rules and regulations, which may from 
time to time be promulgated and adopted pursuant to the Plan.

(b) Governing Law. This Award Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 
State of Delaware, without regard to principles of conflicts of law.

 
(c) Electronic Delivery. By executing the Grant Notice, the Participant hereby consents to the delivery of 

information (including, without limitation, information required to be delivered to the Participant pursuant to applicable securities laws) 
regarding the Company and its Affiliates or Subsidiaries, the Plan, the Award and the Shares via Company web site or other 
electronic delivery.

 
(d) Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered under this Award Agreement shall be in writing (which 

shall include electronic transmission) and shall be deemed received (i) the business day following electronic verification of receipt if 
sent electronically, (ii) upon personal delivery to the party to whom the notice is directed, or (iii) the business day following deposit 
with a reputable overnight courier (or the second business day following deposit in the case of an international delivery). Notice shall 
be addressed to the Company at its principal executive office and to the Participant at the address that he or she most recently 
provided to the Company. The recipient may acknowledge actual receipt at a time earlier than the deemed receipt set forth herein or 
by a means other than that set forth herein.

 
(e) Successors/Assigns. This Award Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 

and their respective permitted heirs, beneficiaries, successors and assigns. 
 
(f) Severability. If one or more provisions of this Award Agreement are held to be unenforceable under applicable 

law, such provision shall be excluded from this Award Agreement, and the balance of the Award Agreement shall be interpreted as if 
such provision were so excluded and shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms. The parties agree to replace such illegal, 
void, invalid or unenforceable provision of this Award Agreement with a legal, valid and enforceable provision that will achieve, to the 
extent possible, the economic, business and other purposes of such illegal, void, invalid or unenforceable provision.
 

(g) Section 409A. This Award Agreement is intended to be interpreted and applied so that the payments and 
benefits set forth herein shall, as applicable, comply with or be exempt from the requirements of Code Section 409A, and, 
accordingly, to the maximum extent permitted, this Award Agreement shall be interpreted to the fullest extent possible to reflect and 
implement such intent. Notwithstanding anything in this Award Agreement to the contrary and to the extent the payments and 
benefits set forth herein are subject to Code Section 409A, a Termination of Employment shall not be deemed to have occurred for 
purposes of any provision of this Award Agreement unless such termination is also a “separation from service” within the meaning of 
Code Section 409A. Notwithstanding any provision in this Award Agreement to the contrary, if on his or her Termination of 
Employment, the Participant is deemed to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code Section 409A, any 
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payments or benefits due upon such Termination of Employment that constitute a “deferral of compensation” within the meaning of 
Code Section 409A and which do not otherwise qualify under the exemptions under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1 (including without 
limitation, the short-term deferral exemption and the permitted payments under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(A)), shall be delayed 
and paid or provided to the Participant on the earlier of a date within 10 days after the date that is six (6) months after the 
Participant’s separation from service or, if earlier, the date of the Participant’s death.

 
(h) Clawback/Recoupment. The RSUs granted under this Agreement, and any Shares issued or other payments 

made in respect thereof, shall be subject to any recoupment policy that the Company may adopt from time to time, to the extent any 
such policy is applicable to the Participant and to such compensation including, but not limited to, the Company’s Dodd-Frank 
Clawback policy, designed to comply with the requirements of Rule 10D-1 promulgated under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, and the Company’s Clawback and Forfeiture Policy, as well as any recoupment provisions required under 
applicable law. By accepting the grant of RSUs under this Agreement, the Participant acknowledges, agrees and consents to the 
Company’s application, implementation and enforcement of (a) such recoupment policies with respect to all covered compensation 
received or to be received by the Participant, to the extent applicable, and (b) any provision of applicable law relating to cancellation, 
recoupment, rescission or payback of compensation and expressly agrees that the Company may take such actions as are 
necessary to effectuate such recoupment policies (as applicable to the Participant) or applicable law without further consent or action 
being required by Participant. For purposes of the foregoing, the Participant expressly and explicitly authorizes (x) the Company to 
issue instructions, on the Participant’s behalf, to any brokerage firm and/or third party administrator engaged by the Company to hold 
the Participant’s Shares and other amounts acquired under the Plan to re-convey, transfer or otherwise return such Shares and/or 
other amounts to the Company and (y) the Company’s recovery of any covered compensation through any method of recovery that 
the Company deems appropriate, including without limitation by reducing any amount that is or may become payable to the 
Participant. The Participant further agrees to comply with any request or demand for repayment by any Subsidiary or Affiliate in order 
to comply with such policies or applicable law. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement and any Company recoupment policy 
conflict, the terms of the recoupment policy shall prevail.
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EXHIBIT 10.3

EXCELERATE ENERGY, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF GRANT OF AWARD OF 
PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

 
Notice of Grant 
 
 Excelerate Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby grants to the Participant named below the number of performance-based restricted 
stock units specified below (the “Award” or the “Performance Stock Units”). Each Performance Stock Unit represents the right to 
receive one share of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and 
subject to the conditions set forth in this Grant Notice, the Excelerate Energy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the 
Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Award Agreement”) promulgated under such Plan, each as amended from time to 
time. This Award is granted pursuant to the Plan and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by the Award Agreement.

Participant Name:   

Grant Date:  
 
Target Number of 
Performance Stock Units 
(“Target Shares”):  

Vesting Schedule: Provided that the Participant has not experienced a Termination of Employment from the Grant Date through the applicable vesting 
date, from [___]% to [___]% of the Target Shares shall vest as determined 
following completion of the Performance Period in accordance with the 
performance-vesting provisions contained in Exhibit A to the Award Agreement 
and the other terms and conditions contained in the Award Agreement. 

 
Agreements
 
By your signature and the Company’s signature below, you and the Company agree that this Award is granted under and governed 
by the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Capitalized 
terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Plan or the Award Agreement, as the case may be.
 
You further acknowledge that your rights to any Performance Stock Units will be earned and become vested only as you provide 
services to the Company over time, subject to the attainment of the performance-vesting provisions contained in Exhibit A to the 
Award Agreement, that the grant of this Award is not consideration for service you rendered to the Company prior to the Grant Date, 
and that nothing herein or in the attached documents confers upon you any right to continue your employment or other service 
relationship with the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any period of time, nor does it interfere in any way with your right or 
the Company’s (or any Affiliate’s or Subsidiary’s) right to terminate that relationship at any time, for any reason or no reason, with or 
without Cause, and with or without advance notice, except as may be required by the terms of any employment or service 
agreement, offer letter, severance agreement, or any other agreement between the Participant and the Company or any Affiliate or 
Subsidiary (such agreement, a “Separate Agreement”) or in compliance with governing public law. 

 
 



 

 
“COMPANY”
 
Excelerate Energy, Inc. 
 
 
 
_________________________________
Name: 
Title: 

“PARTICIPANT”
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________
Name 
 
 
 
________________________________
Signature
 
 
________________________________
Address
 
 
________________________________
Address
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EXCELERATE ENERGY, INC.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

This Award Agreement is made and entered into by and between Excelerate Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Company”), and 
the Participant identified in the Notice of Grant of Award of Performance Stock Units (“Grant Notice”) which is attached hereto (the 
“Participant”).

1. Grant of Performance Stock Units. The Company hereby grants to the Participant named in the Grant Notice an award 
of Performance Stock Units, subject to all of the terms and conditions in this Award Agreement and the Plan, which are incorporated 
herein by reference. Performance Stock Units issued pursuant to a Grant Notice and this Award Agreement are referred to in this 
Agreement as “Performance Stock Units” or “PSUs.” 

2. Vesting of Award; Settlement. 

(a) Vesting. The Performance Stock Units shall become earned and vest, if at all, based upon the achievement of one or 
more predetermined performance goals, as outlined in Exhibit A (the “Performance Goal”), over the period specified on Exhibit A 
over which attainment of the Performance Goal is to be measured (the “Performance Period”). Performance Stock Units awarded 
hereunder that are not vested and remain subject to forfeiture are referred to herein as “Unvested PSUs.” 

 
(c) Company’s Obligation to Pay; Settlement. Each Performance Stock Unit represents the right to receive payment as soon 

as practicable following, and in all events within 2 ½ months following, the earlier of (i) any applicable accelerated vesting date set 
forth in Section 3 below and (ii) the date on which the Committee certifies the attained level of the Performance Goal (the 
“Certification Date”), in the form of one share of the Company’s Common Stock (each, a “Share” and collectively, the “Shares”). The 
Participant will have no right of payment of any Shares until such date. Prior to the actual payment of a Share on any Performance 
Stock Unit, such Performance Stock Unit will represent an unsecured obligation of the Company, for which there is no trust and no 
obligation other than to issue Shares as contemplated by this Award Agreement and the Plan.

3. Accelerated Vesting; Forfeiture. Except as set forth in this Section 3, upon the Participant’s Termination of Employment 
prior to the Certification Date, any then Unvested PSUs held by the Participant shall be forfeited and canceled as of the date of such 
termination.

(a) Death; Disability. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is by reason of death or Disability, any Unvested PSUs 
shall accelerate and vest in full at the Target Share level, effective as of the date of such Termination of Employment.

(b) CIC Termination. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is by the Company without Cause or by the Participant 
for Good Reason and, in either case such Termination of Employment occurs within the period commencing on the date a Change in 
Control is consummated and ending on the 24-month anniversary thereof (a “CIC Termination”), all then Unvested PSUs shall 
accelerate and vest in full with the Performance Goals deemed achieved at the greater of (i) the Target Share level and (ii) the level 
at which the Performance Goals were attained treating the date of the Change in Control as the last day of the Performance Period. 
As used herein, “Good Reason” has the meaning given to such term in the Excelerate Energy, Inc. Change in Control Severance 
Plan.

 
(c) Cause Termination. If the Participant’s Termination of Employment is as a result of a termination by the Company for 

Cause, all outstanding Performance Stock Units that have not yet been 
 -3-



 

settled, whether vested or Unvested, shall be immediately forfeited and canceled as of the date of such termination.
 

4. Restrictions on Resales. The Company may impose such restrictions, conditions or limitations as it determines 
appropriate as to the timing and manner of any resales by the Participant or other subsequent transfers by the Participant of any 
Shares issued pursuant to the vested PSUs, including without limitation (a) restrictions under an insider trading policy, (b) restrictions 
designed to delay and/or coordinate the timing and manner of sales by the Participant and other holders and (c) restrictions as to the 
use of a specified brokerage firm for such resales or other transfers.

5. Rights as a Stockholder. The Participant shall not be, nor have any of the rights or privileges of, a stockholder of the 
Company in respect of any PSUs unless and until Shares settled for such PSUs shall have been issued by the Company to the 
Participant (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the 
Company). Notwithstanding the foregoing, from and after the Grant Date and until the earlier of (a) the time when the PSUs are 
settled in accordance with the terms hereof or (b) the time when the Participant’s right to receive Shares upon payment of PSUs is 
forfeited, on the date that the Company pays a cash dividend (if any) to holders of Common Stock generally, the Participant shall be 
entitled to a dividend equivalent which shall be paid, in the form of a cash accrual on a bookkeeping account. Such dividend 
equivalents (if any) shall be subject to the same terms and conditions and shall be settled or forfeited and at the same time as the 
PSUs to which the dividend equivalents were credited.

6. Withholding Taxes. To the extent required by applicable federal, state, local or foreign law, the Participant shall make 
arrangements satisfactory to the Company for the satisfaction of any withholding tax obligations that arise by reason of the grant, 
vesting or settlement of the PSUs. The Company shall not be required to issue Shares or to recognize the disposition of such Shares 
until such obligations are satisfied. The Participant acknowledges that the Company shall have the right to deduct any taxes required 
to be withheld by law in connection with the settlement of PSUs from any amounts payable by it to the Participant (including, without 
limitation, withholding Shares otherwise issuable under the Award or any other future cash wages). 

7. Non-Transferability of Award. The Participant understands, acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise 
provided in the Plan or as permitted by the Board, the Award may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise directly or 
indirectly encumbered or disposed of other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

8. Other Agreements Superseded. The Grant Notice, this Award Agreement, the Plan and any Separate Agreement, if 
applicable, constitute the entire understanding between the Participant and the Company regarding the Award. Any prior 
agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning the Award are superseded.

9. Limitation in Interest in Shares Subject to Performance Stock Units. Neither the Participant (individually or as a 
member of a group) nor any beneficiary or other person claiming under or through the Participant shall have any right, title, interest, 
or privilege in or to any Shares allocated or reserved for the purpose of the Plan or subject to the Grant Notice or this Award 
Agreement except as to such Shares, if any, as shall have been issued to such person in connection with the Award. Nothing in the 
Plan, in the Grant Notice, this Award Agreement or any other instrument executed pursuant to the Plan shall confer upon the 
Participant any right to continue in the Company’s employ or service nor limit in any way the Company’s (or any Affiliate’s or 
Subsidiary’s) right to terminate the Participant’s employment or other service at any time for any reason.
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10. No Liability of Company. The Company and any Affiliate or Subsidiary which is in existence or hereafter comes into 
existence shall not be liable to the Participant or any other person as to: (a) the non-issuance or sale of Shares as to which the 
Company has been unable to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company's counsel to 
be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder; and (b) any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by 
the Participant or other person due to the receipt or settlement of any Performance Stock Units granted hereunder.

11. General. 

(a) Governing Plan Document. The Award is subject to all the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which are 
hereby made a part of the Award, and is further subject to all interpretations, amendments, rules and regulations, which may from 
time to time be promulgated and adopted pursuant to the Plan.

(b) Governing Law. This Award Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 
State of Delaware, without regard to principles of conflicts of law.

 
(c) Electronic Delivery. By executing the Grant Notice, the Participant hereby consents to the delivery of 

information (including, without limitation, information required to be delivered to the Participant pursuant to applicable securities laws) 
regarding the Company and its Affiliates or Subsidiaries, the Plan, the Award and the Shares via Company web site or other 
electronic delivery.

 
(d) Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered under this Award Agreement shall be in writing (which 

shall include electronic transmission) and shall be deemed received (i) the business day following electronic verification of receipt if 
sent electronically, (ii) upon personal delivery to the party to whom the notice is directed, or (iii) the business day following deposit 
with a reputable overnight courier (or the second business day following deposit in the case of an international delivery). Notice shall 
be addressed to the Company at its principal executive office and to the Participant at the address that he or she most recently 
provided to the Company. The recipient may acknowledge actual receipt at a time earlier than the deemed receipt set forth herein or 
by a means other than that set forth herein.

 
(e) Successors/Assigns. This Award Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 

and their respective permitted heirs, beneficiaries, successors and assigns. 
 
(f) Severability. If one or more provisions of this Award Agreement are held to be unenforceable under applicable 

law, such provision shall be excluded from this Award Agreement, and the balance of the Award Agreement shall be interpreted as if 
such provision were so excluded and shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms. The parties agree to replace such illegal, 
void, invalid or unenforceable provision of this Award Agreement with a legal, valid and enforceable provision that will achieve, to the 
extent possible, the economic, business and other purposes of such illegal, void, invalid or unenforceable provision.

 
(g) Section 409A. This Award Agreement is intended to be interpreted and applied so that the payments and 

benefits set forth herein shall, as applicable, comply with or be exempt from the requirements of Code Section 409A, and, 
accordingly, to the maximum extent permitted, this Award Agreement shall be interpreted to the fullest extent possible to reflect and 
implement such intent. Notwithstanding anything in this Award Agreement to the contrary and to the extent the payments and 
benefits set forth herein are subject to Code Section 409A, a Termination of Employment shall not be deemed to have occurred for 
purposes of any provision of this Award Agreement unless such termination is also a “separation from service” within the meaning of 
Code Section 409A. Notwithstanding any 
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provision in this Award Agreement to the contrary, if on his or her Termination of Employment, the Participant is deemed to be a 
“specified employee” within the meaning of Code Section 409A, any payments or benefits due upon such Termination of 
Employment that constitute a “deferral of compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 409A and which do not otherwise 
qualify under the exemptions under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1 (including without limitation, the short-term deferral exemption and the 
permitted payments under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(A)), shall be delayed and paid or provided to the Participant on the 
earlier of a date within 10 days after the date that is six (6) months after the Participant’s separation from service or, if earlier, the 
date of the Participant’s death.

 
(h) Clawback/Recoupment. The PSUs granted under this Agreement, and any Shares issued or other payments 

made in respect thereof, shall be subject to any recoupment policy that the Company may adopt from time to time, to the extent any 
such policy is applicable to the Participant and to such compensation including, but not limited to, the Company’s Dodd-Frank 
Clawback policy, designed to comply with the requirements of Rule 10D-1 promulgated under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, and the Company’s Clawback and Forfeiture Policy, as well as any recoupment provisions required under 
applicable law. By accepting the grant of PSUs under this Agreement, the Participant acknowledges, agrees and consents to the 
Company’s application, implementation and enforcement of (a) such recoupment policies with respect to all covered compensation 
received or to be received by the Participant, to the extent applicable, and (b) any provision of applicable law relating to cancellation, 
recoupment, rescission or payback of compensation and expressly agrees that the Company may take such actions as are 
necessary to effectuate such recoupment policies (as applicable to the Participant) or applicable law without further consent or action 
being required by Participant. For purposes of the foregoing, the Participant expressly and explicitly authorizes (x) the Company to 
issue instructions, on the Participant’s behalf, to any brokerage firm and/or third party administrator engaged by the Company to hold 
the Participant’s Shares and other amounts acquired under the Plan to re-convey, transfer or otherwise return such Shares and/or 
other amounts to the Company and (y) the Company’s recovery of any covered compensation through any method of recovery that 
the Company deems appropriate, including without limitation by reducing any amount that is or may become payable to the 
Participant. The Participant further agrees to comply with any request or demand for repayment by any Subsidiary or Affiliate in order 
to comply with such policies or applicable law. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement and any Company recoupment policy 
conflict, the terms of the recoupment policy shall prevail.
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EXHIBIT A
 

PERFORMANCE GOALS AND PERFORMANCE PERIOD
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EXHIBIT 10.4

 

EXCELERATE ENERGY
2445 Technology Forest Blvd.,
Level 6
The Woodlands, TX 77381 USA

 
 T: +1 +1 832 813 7100
 F: +1 +1 832 813 7103

 excelerateenergy.com

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
1525 West WT Harris Blvd. 1B1
Charlotte, NC 28262
Attention: Leng Xiong
 
Re: Request for Corrective Amendment 

Gentlemen:

Reference is made to that certain Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement dated as of March 17, 
2023 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”), by and among 
Excelerate Energy Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, as borrower (the “Borrower”), Excelerate Energy, 
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Parent”), Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (the “Administrative Agent”), and 
each of the financial institutions from time to time party thereto as lenders (each a “Lender” and collectively the “Lenders”). 
Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used herein which are defined in the Credit Agreement shall have the 
respective meanings assigned to such terms in the Credit Agreement.

The Borrower has advised the Administrative Agent that Section 6.7(d) of the Credit Agreement contains an 
ambiguity, mistake or defect as a result of the omission of a reference to EE Holdings as a permitted recipient of Restricted 
Payments described therein (the “Specified Drafting Issue”). The Borrower has further advised the Administrative Agent that 
the Specified Drafting Issue created a conflict between Section 6.7(d) of the Credit Agreement and the requirements under 
the Borrower’s Sixth Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement, dated as of April 14, 2022 (as amended, 
restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Borrower Operating Agreement”).

Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 9.2(c) of the Credit Agreement, the Borrower hereby requests that the 
Administrative Agent execute this letter (this “Letter”) to amend and correct the Specified Drafting Issue in Section 6.7(d) of 
the Credit Agreement in order to cure the Specified Drafting Issue and resulting conflict between the Credit Agreement and 
the Borrower Operating Agreement.

Accordingly, the Administrative Agent has agreed to grant the requested amendment and correction in accordance 
with the following terms of this Letter:

 



 
 
 

Excelerate Energy Limited Partnership,
February 16, 2024 Page 2

1. Corrective Amendment . Subject to and upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Administrative Agent and the 
Borrower hereby agree to the following corrective amendment (the “ Amendment ”): Section 6.7(d) of the Credit Agreement 
is hereby amended by replacing the phrase “may make a Restricted Payment to Parent” with the phrase “may make a 
Restricted Payment to Parent and EE Holdings”.

2. Limitations . Except for the Amendment, nothing contained herein shall be deemed a consent to or waiver of any other 
action or inaction of the Borrower or any other Loan Party that constitutes a violation of any provision of the Credit 
Agreement or any other Loan Document, or which results in a Default or Event of Default under the Credit Agreement or any 
other Loan Document. The Administrative Agent shall not be obligated to grant any future consents or amendments with 
respect to the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document (including, without limitation, any future corrective 
amendments in accordance with Section 9.2(c) of the Credit Agreement). No failure or delay on the part of the 
Administrative Agent to exercise any right or remedy under the Credit Agreement, any other Loan Document or applicable 
law shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy preclude any other or 
further exercise of any right or remedy, all of which are cumulative.

3. Miscellaneous .

a. This Letter may be executed in counterparts, and all parties need not execute the same counterpart. Counterpart 
signature pages executed by Facsimiles or other electronic transmission (e.g. “pdf” or “tif”) shall be effective as originals.

b. THIS LETTER, THE CREDIT AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL 
AGREEMENT AMONG THE PARTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE SUBJECT MATTER THEREOF AND MAY NOT BE 
CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE 
PARTIES. THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES.

c. The Borrower agrees to pay or reimburse the Administrative Agent for all of its reasonable and documented out-of-pocket 
costs and expenses incurred in connection with this Letter, any other documents prepared in connection herewith and the 
transactions contemplated hereby, including, without limitation, the reasonable and documented fees and disbursements of 
counsel to the Administrative Agent, in each case, in accordance with (and as limited by) Section 9.3 of the Credit 
Agreement.

d. The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that this Letter is a Loan Document.

e. THIS LETTER SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE 
OF NEW YORK.
 

 



 
 
 

Excelerate Energy Limited Partnership,
February 16, 2024 Page 3

Please evidence your acknowledgment of and agreement to each of the terms and conditions set forth herein by 
executing this Letter in the space indicated below and returning a fully executed counterpart of this Letter to the Borrower.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

 



 

Regards,

EXCELERATE ENERGY LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP,
as the Borrower

      
   By:   /s/ Dana Armstrong
     Name: Dana Armstrong
     Title: Chief Financial Officer
      
 
 
 
 

EXCELERATE ENERGY, INC., as Parent

      
   By:   /s/ Dana Armstrong
     Name: Dana Armstrong
     Chief Financial Officer
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ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED:

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., 
as the Administrative Agent
 

      
   By:   /s/ Michael Quigley
     Name: Michael Quigley
     Title: Vice President
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EXHIBIT 31.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I, Steven Kobos, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Excelerate Energy, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this 
report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for 
the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting. 

 
      
Date: May 9, 2024   By:   /s/ Steven Kobos
     Steven Kobos
     President and Chief Executive Officer 
     (Principal Executive Officer)

 
 





EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I, Dana Armstrong, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Excelerate Energy, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this 
report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for 
the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting. 

 
      
Date: May 9, 2024   By:   /s/ Dana Armstrong
     Dana Armstrong
     Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
     (Principal Financial Officer)
 

 





EXHIBIT 32.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Excelerate Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024, as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Steven Kobos, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, 
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
 
Date: May 9, 2024

   
/s/ Steven Kobos
Name:  Steven Kobos
Title:  President and Chief Executive Officer 
  (Principal Executive Officer)

 
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff on request.

 





EXHIBIT 32.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Excelerate Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024, as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Dana Armstrong, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge: 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 

Date: May 9, 2024
   
/s/ Dana Armstrong
Name:  Dana Armstrong
Title:  Executive Vice President and 

Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Financial Officer)

 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff on request.

 




